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KENINDIA ASSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

The directors have pleasure in submitting their repod together with the audited firancial statemants for the year ended
31 Decamber2Di5, which disclose the state of fnancial affairs of the Group comprising Kenindia Assurance Company
Limited and its subsidiaries KenyaPravack Limited, Kenindia Asset Management Limted and Tanzindia Assurance
Company Limited.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group underwriles all classes of lfe and non-life insurance risksas definad by the Insurance Act it also issues
products to provice its customers with asset management solutions for their savings and retrement needs.

RESULTS

KShs'000
Group profit before 1ax 856,715
Taxaion charge {33,024)
Group profit after tax 823,691
Mon-controliing interest (11,159
Net profit for the year transferred to reserves 812,532

DIVIDENDS

The directors recommend the payment of a dividend of KShs56. 14 million representing KShs 10 per share (2014 Mil).
DIRECTORS

The direciors, who beid office during the year and up to the dale of this report, are set out an page 1

STAFF

The boards of directars wish 1c extend their appreciation to the management and all our staff for all their good wark in
the year.

AUDITORS

The Auditors, Delotte &Toucke have expressed their willingness to confinue in office in accordance with Section
15902} of the Kenyan Companies Act (Cap 488) and subject to Section 56(4) of th2 Insurance Act {Cap 487,

By order of the Board

r- <

N P Kothari
Secratary

23rd March2016



KENINDIA ASSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES
ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

The Kenyan Companies Act requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year which give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the group and of the company as at the end of the financial year and of their operating
results for that year. It also requires the directors to ensure that the company and its subsidiaries keep proper accounting
records which disclose, with reasonable accuracy at any time, the financial position of the group and of the company. They
are also responsible for safeguarding the assefs of the group.

The directors are responsible for the preparation of financial staterments that give a true and fair view in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Kenyan Companies Act, and for such internal
controls as the directors determine are necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

The directors accept responsibility for the annual financial statements, which have been prepared using appropriate
accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates, in conformity with International
Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Kenyan Companies Act. The directors are of the opinian that the
financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the financial affairs of the group and of the company and of their
operaling results. The directors further accept responsibility for the maintenance of accounting records which may be relied
upon in the preparation of financial statements, as well as adequate systemns of internal financial control.

Nothing has come to the attention of the directors to indicate that the company and its subsidiaries will not remain going
concerns for at least the next twelve months from the date of this statement.

Managing Director/Principal Officer

23rd March 2016



KENINDIA ASSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
REPORT OF THE CONSULTING ACTUARY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

i have conducied. an acwanal valuation of the e ssswance busmess anc soonsurance kabiity valuaton of the shor dsmmm
business of Kemnindba Assurance Company Lirsiied as a1 31 Decembaer 2014

The valuation was conduched n ecoordance with generafly accepted actuans! poncples anc v accorgance wath the
requirements of the Kenyan insurance At Those principles regiime pludent provigien for insurance labdites fulure culge
untfer conlracts, genwerally based spon the assumplons (hal current conditions will contitue. Prowision s therefore not made
for all possibie ConBnEeNcEs

In cornpleting {he actuana valuaion, | have ralied upon the auated Bnancal statements of the Company

0 oy SpTaED

1] Thelde Assucance Business of the Company was financially sound and the actuanal value of the labiitses in respect of all
ciasses of e aurance Business did not exceed the armount of funas of the Life Assurance Business al 31 December
2015

ti1) The catcudation - of the shord term insurance liabttes as st 31 December 2015 55 appropnate and that the insurance

labiives as per the valuaton are sufficently prusen and apprognate geven the pature of the business and exssing
lanilities

Name of Actuary MR. SAKET SINGHAL

Signed 23" Maseh 2016

€1 STin

G
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REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
TO THE MEMBERS OF KENINDIA ASSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Kenindia Assurance Company Limited (the
“"Company”) and its subsidiaries (together “the Group"), set out on pages 7 to 109, which comprise the
consclidated and the company statements of financial position as at 31 December 2015, the consolidazd
and company statements of profit or loss, the consolidated and company statements of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated and company statements of changes in equity and the
consclidated and company statements of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors™ Responsibilify for the Financial Statements

The directors are respaonsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view ir
accordance with International Financial Reperting Standards and the requirements of the Kenyan
Companies Act, and for such internal controls as directors determine are necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditors’ Responsibifity

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require tiat
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures ir
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, we considered the internal controls relevant to the entity’s
preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures tha
were appropriate in the circumstances, but net for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as wel
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of financial affairs of the
group and of the company as at 31 December 2015 and of the group's and company's profit and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the
requirements of the Kenyan Companies Act.

5
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF KENINDIA ASSURANGCE COMPANY LIMITED {CONTINUED)

Report on other legal requirements
As required by the Kenyan Companies Act we report to you, based on our audit, that:

(i we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were
considered necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(i) in our opinion, praper books of account have been kept by the campany, so far as appears from our examination of
those bocks; and

(i) the company's statement of financial position (balance sheet} and statement of profit or less (profit and loss account)
is in agreement with the books of account.

The engagement partrer responsibie for the audit resuiting in this independent auditors' report is
FCPA J W Wangai (P/No 1118).

Od,,ae, ¢ Aowcke

Certified Public Accountants {Kenya)
MNairobi, Kenya

-S l qup(,\' 2016

T



KENINDIA ASSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

Long term Short term Long term Short term
assurance insurance Total assurance insurance Total
business  business 2015 business  business 2014
Mote  KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000
Premium income
Gross earned premium income 2a 1,045,022 3500257 4,545 279 738,512 3,479,865 4,218,377
Premium ceded to reinsurers 2b {23,389) (1,553,081) (1,576,480) 123,957) (1,556,695) (1,580,652
Met earned premium income 1,021,633 1,947,166 2,968,799 714,555 1,923,170 2,637,725
Other income
Investment income 3 2,733,047  1,284083 4,017,110 2,183,649 287,850 2,471,485
Commissions income 4a - 513,202 513,202 - 438,967 435,967
Other income 4c [168) 61,936 61,768 3.839 22 924 26,763
Met other income 2,732,879 1,859,201 4,592,080 2,187 488 747,741 2,935,229
Benefits and claims expense
Claims and policy holder benefits
EXpEnse S5a  (2,202,085) (2,108,970) (4,311,055) (1,364,784) (2,550,926) (331571 0}
Surrender and annuity incurred Ba (1,034,041) - (1,024,041} (1,126 544) - (1,126544)
Claims ceded to reinsurers 5a - 818,431 818.431 - 916,584 916,584
Net benefits and claims expense (3.236,126) (1,290,639} (4,526,665) ([2,491,328) (1,634,342) (4,125670)
Expenses
Operating expenses b {261,650y  (688,431)  (950,081) (211,434}  (679.214) (190,648)
Other expenses Ba (51,012) (61,931}  (112,943) {12,097) {54,055) '66,152)
Allowance for credit losses 22 - (26,786) (26,796) - 150,282) 50,282)
Write off of rental debtors (1,015) - {1,015) (4,722) (584) (5.316)
Bad debts written off - {1,403) (1,403) - - -
Write off of cld balances - {326,036) (326,038) - - -
Commissions expense 4b (137,205)  (570,100) (707,305) (116,653)  (558,220) (674,373)
Premium levy (6,616) {37.183) (43,809) (5.018) (23,808) 28,216)
Contribution to peolicy helders
compensation fund {BBB) {7,223) (8,111} (791) (6,519) (7.,310)
Total expenses _ (458,386) (1,719,113) (2,177,499) (350,715) (1,372,782) (1,73,497)
Profit({loss) before taxation 8 60,000 796,715 856,715 60,000 (336,213) {(¥6,213)
Income tax credit/(expense) Tc 2,544 (35,568) {33,024) 55,656 101,085 ‘56,741
Profiti{loss)for the year 62,544 761,147 823,691 115,656  (235,128) (19,472)
Basic earnings/(loss) per share 8
{KShs) - - 144.74 - - '2243)
Diluted earningsi{loss) per share
{KShs) 8 - - 144,74 - - 22.43)
Aftributable to:
Equity holders of parent 62 544 749,988 812 532 115,656  (241,548) (15,892}
Nen-controlling interest - 11,159 11,159 - 6,420 6,420
62,544 761,147 823,691 115,656  (235,128) (19,47 2)




KENINDIA ASSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

Profit!{loss) for the year

Other comprehensive income
ltems that may be reciassified to
profit or foss in subsequent
periods:
Met [gain)/loss on availabie-for-
sale investments:

- Government securities
Exchange differences on
translation of foreign operations

ltems that will not be reclassified
fo profit or loss in subsequent
periods:

Rewaluation of buildings
Deferred tax on revaluation

Depreciation released on

revaluation

Total other comprehensive
income for the year net of tax

Total comprehensive income
Attributable to:

Equity holders of the parent
Mon-controlling interest

Mote

25

Long term Short term Long term Short term
assurance insurance Total assurance insurance Total
business  business 2015 business  business 2014
KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000
62,544 761,147 823,691 115,656  (235,128) (119,472)
- (51,768) {51.768) - 31,870 31,870
- (2,672) {2,672) - {2,911) (2,911}
u (54,440) {54,440) - 28,959 28,959
- 57,033 57,033 - 25,404 25,404
- (17,110} {17,110} - (7.621) 7.B821)
- 14,300 14,300 - 13,661 13,661
- 54,223 54,223 - 31,444 31,444
- (217) {217) - 60,403 50,403
62,544 760,930 823,474 115,656  (174,725) (£9,069)
62,544 749,771 812,315 115,656  (181,1458) (€5,489)
- 11,159 11,158 - 6,420 6,420
62,544 760,930 823,474 115,656  (174,725) (9,069)




KENINDIA ASSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

COMPANY STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

Note
Premium income
Gross garned premium income 2a
Premiums ceded to reinsurers 2b
Met earned premium income
Other income
Investment income 3
Commissions income 4a
COther income 4c
Met other income
Benefits and claims expense
Claims and policyholders benefits
expense 5a
Surrender and annuity incurred 5a
Claims ceded to reinsurers 5a

Met benefits and claims expense

Expenses

Operating expenses 5b
Other expenses 6
Allowance for credit losses 22

Write off of rental debtors

Write off cld balances

Commissions expense ab
Premium levy

Centribution to policy holders
compensation fund

Total expenses

Profit/ (loss) before taxation 8
Income tax creditf{charge) 7d
Profit/ {loss) for the year

Basic earnings/{loss) per 8
share (KShs)

Diluted earnings/{loss) per &
share (KShs)

Long term Short term Long term Shert term
assurance insurance Total assurance insurance Total
business  business 2015 business  business 2014
KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000
1,045,022 2,768,805 3,813,827 738,512 2,703,486 3,442,008
(23,389) (1,102,137 (1,125,526} (23,957) (1,075,764) (1,099,721)
1,021,633 1,666,668 2,688,301 714,555 1,627,732 2,342 287
2733047 1254630 3987677 2.183,649 257,011 2,440,660
- 396,845 396,845 - 301,368 301,368
{168) 2,021 1,853 3,838 7,636 11,475
2,732,879 1,653,496 4,386,375 2,187,488 566,015 2,753,503
(2.202,085) {1,658,661) (3,B60,746) (1,364,784) (1,974,235) (3,339,019}
(1,034,041) - (1,034,041 (1,126,544) - (1,128,544
- 517,302 517,302 - 522,731 522 731
{3,236,126) {1,141,359) (4,377,485) (2,491,328) (1,451,504) (3,942,832)
[261,650)  {538,899) [B00,549) (211.434) (556,278 (T67,712]
{51.012) (52,750) (103,762) (12,097 (45,635) (57.732]
- (24,018) {24,018) - (48,841) {48,841 )
{1,015) - (1,015) (4,722) (594} 5,316)
- (326,038) (326.036) = z -
(137,205) (459,062)  (596.267) (116,653)  {423,095) (539,743)
(6,618) (26,139) {32,755) {5,018) (21,915) [26,933)
[B88) {7,223) (8,111 (791) {6,519) (7,310
{458,386) (1.434,127) (1.892,513) {350,715) (1,102,877) (1,453,591}
60,000 744,678 804,678 60,000 (360,634) (300,634)
2,544 {16,314) (13,770) 55,656 107,940 163,546
62,544 728,364 790,908 115,656  (252,694) (137,033)
- - 140.88 - - (24.41)
< - 140.88 - - (24.4)




KENINDIA ASSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

COMPANY STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

MNote
Profit/{loss) for the year

Other comprehensive income
ltems that may be reclassified fo
profit or loss in subsequent
perfods:
Net gain/{loss)on available-for-
sale investments:
- Government securities 25

Items that will not be reclassified
fo profif or loss in subsequent
periods!

Revaluation of buildings
Depreciation released on

revaluation

Deferred tax on revaluation

Total other comprehensive
income for the year net of tax

Total comprehensive income

Long term Short term Long term Short term

assurance insurance Total assurance insurance Total

business  business 2015 business business 2014

KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000
62,544 728,364 790,908 115,656  (252,694) (137,038)

- (50, 724) (50,724) - 31,298 31,298

- {50,724) {50,724) - 31,298 31,298

- 57.033 57,033 - 25,404 25,404

- 14,300 14,300 - 13,661 13,661

- (17,110} (17,110} - {7,621) (7.621)

- 54,223 54,223 - 31,444 31,444

- 3,499 3,499 - 62,742 62,742

62,544 731,863 794,407 115,656  (189,852) (74,296)

10



KEMNINDIA ASSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2015

Long term Short term
assurance insurance
business business Total
MNote KShs"000 KShs’000 KShs'000
EQUITY
Share capital a8 161,388 400,000 561,388
Share premium - 1,188 1,158
Available-for-sale reserve 2] - (3,490) (3.400)
Revaluation reserve a - 289,427 289,427
Retained earnings 10 81,555 1,723,093 1,804,648
Foreign currency translation reserve 9 - {17,926) (17,926)
Equity attributable to shareholders of parent 242,943 2,392,302 2,635,245
Statutory reserve 11 318,516 - 318,516
MNon-controlling interest ] - 65,331 65,331
Total equity 561,459 2,457,633 3,019,092
REPRESENTED BY:
Assets
Property and equipment 12 18,933 783,205 802,138
Intangible assets 14 4,534 1,061 5,595
Prepaid operating lease rentals 15 1,200,106 6,916 1,207,022
Deferred tax asset 29 - 104,248 104,248
Investment properties 16 1,617,760 1,030,428 2,648,188
Due from Kenya Motor Insurance Pool 24 - 86,201 86,201
Available-for-sale equity investments 18 675 175,186 175,861
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 19 193,608 82,772 276,380
Loans receivable 20 95,976 6B0 98, 656
Receivables arising out of reinsurance arrangements 21 32,5093 1,336,918 1,371,511
Receivables arising out of direct insurance arrangements 22 - 744 045 744 045
Reinsurers' share of insurance liabilities 36 - 4617 767 4617, 767
Other receivables 24 21,313 1,293,720 1,315,033
Taxation recoverable 7 - 56,147 56,147
Government securities:
Held to maturity 25 19,582,129 297,337 18,879,466
Available-for-sale 25 - 845,856 846,866
Deposits with financial institutions 33 603,394 2,791,328 3304722
Commercial paper 33 103,425 - 103,425
Bank and cash balances 32 165,282 136,945 2,227
Total assets 23,639,728 14,393,770 38,033,498
Liabilities
Insurance liabilities 23 41,489 5,858,858 5,800,347
Payable under deposit administration contracts 28 16,990,526 - 16,990,526
Actuarial value of policyholders’ liabilities 27 4,953,607 - 4,953,607
Provision for unearned premium 28 - 1,443 681 1,443,681
Taxation payable 7 48,005 4 864 52,869
Deferred tax liability 29 4,104 87,883 91,987
Payables arising from reinsurance arrangements 30 31,647 2,075,632 2107179
Payables arising out of direct insurance arrangements 30 - 230,125 230,125
Other payables 31 1,008,851 2,235,154 3,244,085
Total liabilities 23,078,269 11,936,137 35,014,406
Total assets net of liabilities 561,459 2,457,633 3,019,092

The financial statements on pages 7 to 109 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Direciers on 23r
March 2016 and signed on its behalf by: = — ~

AP O — \
Director ~—Director
11




KENINDIA ASSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014
Long term Short term

assurance insurance
business business Total
MNote KShs’000 KShs’000 KShs'000
EQUITY
Share capital B 161,388 400,000 561,388
Available-for-sale resernve g - 48 278 48,278
Share premium - 1,198 1,198
Revaluation reserve g - 235,119 236,119
Retained earnings 10 19,011 972,190 991,201
Foreign currancy translation reserve 9 - (15,254) [15,254)
Equity attributable to shareholders of parent 180,399 1,642,531 1,822,930
Statutory reserve 11 318,516 - 318,516
Maon-cantrolling interest a - 54 172 54,172
Total equity 498,915 1,696,703 2,195,618
REPRESENTED BY:
Assets
Property and equipment 12 20,932 650,132 671,064
Intangible assets 14 3,864 1,515 5,379
Prepaid operating lease rentals 15 13,828 16,988 30,816
Deferred tax asset 29 - 118,485 118,485
Investment properties 16 1,100,533 1,322 440 2,422 973
Due from Kenya Motor Insurance Pool 24 - 88,857 858,857
Awvailable-for-sale equity investments 18 675 175,451 176.126
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss 19 177,878 94,223 2721
Loans receivable 20 85,379 1,169 86,548
Receivables arising out of reinsurance arrangements 21 36,179 1,112,974 1,149,153
Receivables arising out of direct insurance arrangements 22 - 718,074 718,074
Reinsurers’ share of insurance liabilities 36 - 6,360,152 6,360,152
Other receivables 24 59,242 380,531 439,773
Taxation recoverable 7 - 59,781 59,761
Government securities:
Held to maturity 25 16,336,729 - 16,336,729
Available-for-sale 25 - 916,376 916,376
Deposits with financial institutions 33 1,002,051 835,814 1,837,865
Commercial paper 33 103,734 - 103,734
Bank and cash balances 32 31,326 112,776 144,102
Total assets 18,972,350 12,963,718 31,936,068
Liabilities
Insurance liabilities 23 36,676 7,569,573 7,606,249
Payable under deposit administration contracts 26 13,963,555 - 13,963,555
Actuarial value of policyholders' liabilities 27 4,182 BTT - 4182877
Provision for unearned premium 28 - 1,381,350 1,381,350
Taxation payable T 30,005 - 30,005
Deferred tax liability 29 24 648 65,272 89,920
Payables arising from reinsurance arrangements 30 18,100 1,519,627 1,537,727
Payables arising out of direct insurance arrangements 30 - 272423 272,423
Other payables £yl 217,574 458 770 676,344
Total liabilities 18,473,435 11,267,015 29,740,450
Total assets net of liabilities 498,915 1,696,703 2,195,618

The financial statements on pages 7 to 109 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 23d
March 2016 and signed cn its behalf by: —

O\ sy

Director “*Director Wanaging Director/Principal Officer
12




KENINDIA ASSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2015

Long term Short term
assurance insurance
business business Total
Note KShs'000 KShs’000 KShs'000
CAPITAL EMPLOYED
Share capital B 161,388 400,000 561,388
Share premium - 1,168 1,198
Available-for-sale reserve 9 - (3,013) (3,013)
Revaluation reserve g - 288,427 289 427
Retained earnings 10 81,555 1,624,603 1,706,158
Total ordinary sharehclders' equity 242 243 2312215 2,555,158
Statutory reserve i 318,516 - 318,516
Total equity 561,459 2,312,215 2,873,674
REPRESENTED BY:
Assets
Property and equipment 13 18,933 755,927 774,850
Intangible assets 14 4 534 1,081 5,585
Prepaid operating lease rentals 15 1,200,106 6,781 1,206,887
Deferred tax asset 29 - 104,155 104,155
Investment properties 16 1617, 760 1,022, 868 2,640,628
Due from Kenya Motor Insurance Pocl 24 - 86,201 86,201
Investment in subsidiaries 17 - 81,905 81,95
Available-for-sale equity investments 18 675 122,779 123,434
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss 19 193,608 72,003 265,61
Loans receivable 20 95,976 880 96,616
Receivables arising out of reinsurance arrangements 21 32,583 936,954 969, 57
Receivables arising out of direct insurance arrangements 22 - 491,145 481,145
Reinsurers’ share of insurance liabilities 36 - 3,898,730 3,898,7:0
Other receivables 24 21,313 1,289,741 1,311,084
Taxation recoverable b - 55,688 55,888
Govemment securities;
Held to maturity investments 25 19,582,129 245 888 19,828,077
Available-for-sale 25 - B34, 004 834,054
Deposits with financial institutions 33 603,394 2,574,834 3,178,233
Commercial paper 33 103,425 - 103,435
Bank and cash balances a2 165,282 57,259 222 54
Total assets 23,639,728 12,638,893 36,278,621
Liabilities
Insurance liabilities 23 41,489 5,158,721 5.201.21
Payable under deposit administration contracts 26 16,990,526 - 16,990,585
Actuarial value of policyholders' liabilities 27 4,953,607 - 4,953,860
Provision for unearned premium 28 - 1,067,429 1,067 42
Payables arising from reinsurance arrangements 30 31,647 1,610,164 1,641,81
Payables arising out of direct insurance arrangements 30 - 230,125 230,12
Other payables K| 1,008,891 2,177,988 3,1B6,87
Deferred tax liability 29 4104 81,251 85,35
Taxation payable Ta 48,005 - 48,00
Total liabilities 23,078,269 10,326,678 32,404,94
Total assets net of liahilities 561,459 2,312,215 2,873,67

The financial statements on pages 7 to 109 were appro'.red and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 2rd
March 2016 and signed on its behalf by:

\ | |
Director Director '~ Managing Director/Principal Officer
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KENINDIA ASSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

Long term Short term
assurance insurance
business business Total
Note KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000
CAPITAL EMPLOYED
Share capital 8 161,388 400,000 561,388
Share premium - 1.198 1,198
Available-for-sale reserve 2] - 47,711 47,711
Revaluation reserve 9 - 236,119 236,119
Retained earnings 10 19,011 B95,324 914,335
Total ordinary shareholders’ equity 180,389 1,580,352 1,760,751
Statutory reserve 11 318,516 - 318,516
Total equity 498,915 1,580,352 2,079,267
REPRESENTED BY:
Assets
Property and equipment 13 20,832 640,021 660,953
Intangible assets 14 3,864 1,515 5,379
Prepaid operating lease rentals 15 13.828 16,852 30,680
Deferred tax asset 29 - 117,878 117,878
Investment properties 16 1,100,533 1,314,880 2,415,413
Due from Kenya Motor Insurance Pool 24 - B6,B57 86,857
Investment in subsidiaries 17 - 81,905 81,905
Available-for-sale equity investments 18 675 122,779 123,454
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss 19 177,878 84,528 262 406
Loans receivable 20 85,379 1,169 85,548
Receivables arising out of reinsurance amrangements 21 35,179 B76,328 912,507
Receivables arising out of direct insurance arrangements 22 - 495 363 495,363
Reinsurers' share of insurance fiahilities K - 5,479,531 5,479,531
Other receivables 24 59,242 376,196 435,438
Taxation recoverable T - 58,479 58,479
Government securities:
Held to maturity investments 25 16,336,729 - 16,336,729
Available-for-sale 25 - 851,492 851,402
Deposits with financial institutions 33 1,002,051 647 975 1,650,026
Commercial paper 33 103,734 - 103,734
Bank and cash balances a2 31,326 55,865 87,191
Total assets 18,972,350 11,309,613 30,281,963
Liabilities
Insurance liabilities 23 36,676 6,782 TN 6,819,467
Payable under deposit administration contracts 26 13,963,555 - 13,963,555
Actuarial value of policyholders' liabilities 27 4,182,877 - 4,182 877
Provision for unearned premium 28 - 977,183 977.183
Payables arising from reinsurance arrangements 30 18,100 1,222,544 1,240,644
Payables arising out of direct insurance arrangements 30 - 272,423 272,423
Other payables kx| 217,574 410,179 627,753
Deferred tax liability 28 24 648 64,141 88,789
Taxation payable 7 30,005 - 30,005
Total liabilities 18,473,435 9,729,261 28,202,696
Total assets net of liabilities 498,915 1,580,352 2,079,267

The financial statements on pages 7 to 109 were appru'u'ed and authorised for issue by the Bopard of Directors on 3rc
March 2016 and signed on its behalf by:

Director

Managing Difector/Principal Officer

14
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KENINDIA ASSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

2015 2014

KShs'000 KShs'000
Cash flows from operating activities
Profiti{loss) before tax 856,715 (276,213)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation on property and equipment 44 885 37,478
Amortisation of intangible assets 2,396 2,306
Amortisation of prepaid lease 39,132 B38
Exchange adjustment on property and equipment 1,249 365
Fair value gains on investment properties {4563,473) [218,8786)
Interest from government securities (Held to maturity) {2,273,829) {1,876,141)
Interest from government securities (Available-for-sale) (102,300) (106,213)
Bank deposit interest (175,962) (175,256)
Loan interest {6,820) 7.412)
Commercial paper interest (11,068) {14,290)
Dividends received from equity investments [22,835) (13,044)
Fair value lossi{gain) on quoted investments 48,729 (23.522)
{Gain)/loss on sale of quoted shares {553) n
Gain on transfer of Kenindia Business Park (976,837) -
Gains on sale of property and equipment {1,009) (738)
working capital changes;
Increase/(decrease) in insurance liakilities {1,705,902) {1,154, 426)
Increase in payable under deposit administration contracts 3,026,971 1,894 444
Increase in actuarial value of policyholders' liabilities 770,730 530,652
Decrease in unearned premium reserve 62,331 [4,577)
Increasef{decrease) in reinsurance arrangements payables 569 452 (182,064)
[Decrease)fincrease in direct insurance arrangements payables (42,298) 4315
Increase in other payables 2,567,741 161,644
Decrease/(increase) in due from motor pool 656 (+368)
{Increase)/decrease in reinsurance arrangements receivables (222,358) 334,099
Decreasef{increase) in direct insurance arrangements receivables (25,971) (13,255)
Increase in reinsurers' share of insurance liabilities 1,742,385 1,562,895
Increase in other receivables (875,260) (1:.072)
Cash generated from operations 2,826,998 364600
Income tax paid (8,613} {3.,8448)
Net cash flows generated from operating activities 2,818,385 3346512
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KENINDIA ASSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property and equipment

Purchase of intangible assets

Proceeds from disposal of property and eguipment

Purchase of leasehold land/{prepaid operating rentais)
Purchase of investment properties

Proceeds on transfer of Kenindia Business Park

Met decrease/(increase) in available-for-sale equity investments
Sale of financial assets at fair value through profit and loss (Quoted shares)
Purchase of financial assets at fair value through profit and loss (Quoted shares)
Repayment of mortgage loans

Policy loans advanced

Repayment of policy loans

Motor vehicle loans advanced

Repayment of motor vehicle loans

MNet investment in government securities (Held to maturity)

Met investment in government securities (Available-for-sale)
[Increase)/decrease in deposits with financial institutions
{maturing after 90 days of date of acquisition)

Net investment in commercial paper

Interest from government securities (Held to maturity)

Interest from government securities (Available-for-sale)

Bank deposit interest

Loan interest

Commercial paper interest

Dividends received from equity investments

Net cash flows generated from/{used in) investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities

Dividends paid

Net cash flows used in financing activities
Increasef{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Movement in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Increasei(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Exchange differences on transtation of foreign operations

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Note 32)

20

2015 2014
KShs'000 KShs'000
{111,122} (91,584)
(2,612) {1,187}
6,155 2,366
{1,225,000) {2,802)
(145,742) {21,825)
1,371,500 .
265 339
2,015 10,595
(55,180) (100,143}
(31,135) (27 435)
20,538 19,800
: {1,500)
489 1,723
(3,542,737 (2,408,190)
17,742 i8,516)
(103,285) (123,025)
103,734 {3,241)
2,273,829 1,876,141
102,300 106,213
175,962 175,256
6,820 7412
11,068 14,290
22,835 13,044
{1,102,561) (562,252)
= {56,138)
. {56,138)
1,715,824 (283,718)
1,368,178 1,658 416
1,715,824 (283,718)
{702) {6,5C)
3,083,300 1,368,1°8




KENINDIA ASSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

COMPANY STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit{loss) before tax
Adjustments for:

Depreciation on property and equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets

Amaortisation of prepaid lease

Fair value gains on investment properiies

Interest from government securities (Held to maturity)
Interest from government securities (Available-for-sale)
Bank deposit interest

Loan interest

Commercial paper interest

Dividends received from equity investments

Fair value (gains)/loss on quoted investments
Lossf{gains) on sale of quoted shares

Gain on transfer of Kenindia Business Park
(Gains)floss on sale of property and equipment

working capital changes;

Decrease in insurance liabilities

Increase in payable under deposit administration contracts
Increase in actuarial value of policyholders' liabilities
Increasef{decrease) in unearned premium reserve
Increasef{decrease) in reinsurance arrangements payables
(Decrease)fincrease in direct insurance arrangements payables
Increase in other payables

Increase in motor pool

{Increase)/decrease in reinsurance arrangements receivables
Decreasef{increase) in direct insurance arrangements receivables
Increase in reinsurers’ share of insurance liabilities

Increase in other receivables

Cash generated from operations

Income tax paid

Net cash flows generated from operating activities

21

2015 2014
KShs'000 KShs'000
804,678 {300,634)
40,468 34,959
2,396 2,306
39,130 836
(463,473) {218,876)
(2,267,364) (1,876.141)
{102,300) {99,481)
(155,778) {153,569)
{6.717) {7,300)
(11,088) (14,290)
{21,938) (12,749)
50,513 {21,780)
{553) 31
(976,837) 2
(1,307) (1,081)
{1,618,257) (1,005,531)
3,026,971 1,804,444
770,730 530,852
90,246 (57,543)
401,167 (167,241)
(42,298) 94,315
2,559,126 122,635
656 (8,353)
(57,040) 372,221
4218 (97,912)
1,580,801 1,383,918
{875,616) (11,416)
2,770,554 382,315
- (35,905)
2,770,554 346,419




KENINDIA ASSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

COMPANY STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property and equipment

Purchase of intangible assets

Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment

Purchase of prepaid operating lease rentals

Proceeds on transfer of Kenindia Business Park

Additions to investment properties

Met increase in available-for-sale equity investments

Sale of financial assets at fair value through profit and loss (Quoted shares)
Met movement in investment in commercial paper

Purchase of financial assets at fair value through profit and loss {Quoted shares)
Policy loans advanced

Repayment of policy loans

Maotaor vehicle loans advanced

Repayment of motor vehicle loans

Met movement in investrment in government securities (Held to maturity)
MNet increase in investment in government securities (Available-for-sale)
{Increase)/decrease in deposits with financial institutions

{maturing after 90 days of date of acquisition)

Interest from government securities (Held to maturity)

Interest from government securities (Available-for-sale)

Bank deposit interest

Loan interest

Commercial paper interest

Dividends received from equity investments

Investment in subsidiary

Met cash flows (used in}/generated from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Dividends paid

Met cash flows used in financing activities
Increasel/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Movement in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Increasef{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Note 32)

2015 2014
KShs'000 KShs'000
(87,456) (87,262)
{2,612 {1,187}
5721 2,418
(1.225,000) {2,802)
1,371,500 -
{146,742} (21,826)
5 (3,630)
2,015 10,595
103,734 (3.241)
{55,180) {100,143}
{31,135) (27.435)
20,538 19,809
= {1,500)
489 1,723
(3,491,288) {2,408,190)
(33,328) (273)
(76,383) {143,780)
2,267,364 1,876,141
102,300 99,481
155,778 153,569
6,717 7,300
11,068 14,290
21,938 12,749
= {10,900)
{1,079,960) {614,094)
] (56, 138)
. {56,138)
1,690,594 (323,803)
1,306,063 1,629,866
1,690,554 {323.8(3)
2,995,657 1,306,063




KENINDIA ASSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all years presented, unless otherwise stated.

{a} Basis of Preparation

(b)

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis in compliance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
{lASB} and in compliance with the requirements of the Kenyan Companies Act. The financial statements
are prepared on the historical cost basis, except for investment properties and certain investments which
are carried at fair value, impaired assets at their recoverable amounts and actuarially determined
liabilities at their present value. The financial statements are presented in Kenya Shillings (KShs),
rounded to the nearest thousand, which is also the functional Group’s curmrency.

The financial statements comprise the consolidated and company statements of profit or loss,
consclidated and company statements of comprehensive income, consolidated and company
statements of financial position, consolidated and company statements of changes in equity,
consolidated and company statements of cash fiows, and explanatory notes. Income and EXpENSes,
excluding the components of other comprehensive income, are recognised in profit or loss. Other
comprehensive income is recognised in the statement of other comprehensive income and comprises
items of income and expenses (including reclassification adjustments) that are not recognised in the
staternent of profit or loss as required or permitted by IFRS. Reclassification adjustments are amounts
reclassified to profit or loss in the current period that were recognised in other comprehensive income in
tha current or previous periods. Transactions with the owners of the Group in their capacity as owners
are recognised in the statement of changes in equity.

The Group presents its statement of financial position broadly in order of liquidity. An analysis regarding
recovery or settlement within twelve months after reporting date (current) and more than twelve months
after reporting date (non-current), is presented in the notes {note 41(iii)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards
requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period, It also requires directors to exercise
judgement in the process of applying the accounting policies adopted by the Group. Although such
estimates and assumptions are based on the directors' best knowledge of the information available,
actual results may differ from those estimates, The judgements and estimates are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, and any revisions to such estimates are recognised in the year in which the
revision is made. The areas involving the judgements of most significance to the financial statements,
and the sources of estimation uncertainty that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment
within the next financial year, are disclosed in Mote 1 (w) below.

For the purposes of reporting under the Kenyan Companies Act, the balance sheet in these financial
statements is represented bylequivalent to the statement of financial position and the profit and loss
account is presented in the statement of profit and loss.

Adoption of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
i} New standards and amendments fo published standards effective for the year ended 31 December
2015

The following new and revised IFRSs were effective in the current year and had no material impact on
the amounts repaorted in these financial statements.
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KENINDIA ASSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b} Adoption of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) {continued)

i)

New standards and amendments to published standards effective for the year ended 31 December 2015
{Confinued)

IAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions

The amendments to IAS 1% clarify the accounting treatment for contributions from employees or third
parties to a defined benefit plan.

According to the amendments, discretionary contributions made by employees or third parties reduce
service cost upon payment of these contributions to the plan. When the formal terms of the plan specify
contributions from employees or third parties, the accounting depends on whether the contributions are
linked to service, as follows:

= If the contributions are not linked to services {e.g. contributions are required to reduce a deficit arising
from losses on plan assets or from actuarial losses), they affect the remeasurement of the net defined

benefit liability {asset).
*  If contributions are linked to services, they reduce service costs. If the amount of contribution is

dependent on the number of years of service, the entity should reduce service cost by attributing it to
the contributions to periods of service using the attribution method required by IAS 19 paragraph 70
(for the gross benefits). If the amount of contribution is independent of the number of years of service,
the entity is permitted to either reduce service cost in the period in which the related service &
rendered, or reduce service cost by attributing the contributions to the employees” pericds of service in
accordance with |AS 19 paragraph 70The amendment requires retrospective application

The directors of the Group do not anticipate that the application of the standard will have a significant
impact on the Group's financial statements since the Group doesn't have a defined benefit plan.

Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle include a number of amendments to various IFRSs,
which are summarised below:

The amendment to IFRS 2 is to clarify the definition of vesting condition and market condition to ensure the
consistent classification of conditions attached to a share-based payment It also adds definitions for
‘performance condition' and ‘service condition' which were previously included as part of the definition of
‘vesting condition’. The amendment requires prospective application.

The amendment to IFRS 3 clarifies that contingent consideration should be measured at fair value at each
reporting date, imespective of whether or not the contingent consideration falls within the scope of IFRS 1 or
IAS 39. Changes in fair value (other than measurement period adjustments as defined in IFRS 3) shoulc be
recognised in profit and loss. The amendment to IFRS 3 requires prospective application

The amendment to IFRS B(j) requires an enlity to disclose the judgements made by management in apphing
the aggregation criteria to operating segments, including a brief description of the operating segments
aggregated and the economic indicators assessed in determining whether the operating segments stare
similar economic characteristics; and (i) clarifies that a reconciliation of the total of the reportable segmeits’
assets to the entity's assets should only be provided if information about the amount of segment assets are
regularly provided to the chief operating decision-maker.

The amendment to IFRS 13clarifies that the issuance of IFRS 13 and consequential amendments to IAS39
and IFRS 9 did not remove the ability to measure short- term receivables and payables with no stated inteest
rate at their invoice amaunts without discounting, if the effect of discounting is immaterial. This amendmerst
does not include any effective date because this is just to clarify the intended meaning in the basis for
conclusions.
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KENINDIA ASSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

{b) Adoption of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) {continued)

il New standards and amendments to published standards effective for the year ended 31 December 2015

(Continued)
Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle {Continued)

The amendment to IAS 16 and IAS 38 remove perceived inconsistencies in the accounting for accumulated
depreciation/amortisation when an item of property, plant and equipment or an intangible asset is revalued. The
amended standards clarify that the gross carrying amount is adjusted in a manner consistent with the revaluation
of the carrying amount of the asset and that accumulated depreciation/ amortisation is the difference between the
gross carrying amount and the carrying amount after taking into account accumulated impairment losses,

The amendment to IAS 24 clarifies that a management entity providing key management personnel services to the
reporting entity or to the parent of the reporting entity is a related party of the reparting entity. Consequently, the
reporting entity should disclose as related party transactions the amounts incurred for the service paid or payable
to the management entity for the provision of key management personnel services. However, disclosure of the
components of compensation to key management personnel that is paid by the management enlity to the
management entity's employees or directors is not required.

Annual Improvements 2011-2013 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle include a number of amendments to various IFRSs, which
are summarised below:

The amendments to IFRS 3 clarify that the standard does not apply to the accounting for the formation of all tyoes
of joint arrangement in the financial statements of the joint arrangement itself,

The amendments to IFRS 13 clarify that the scope of the portfolio exception for measuring the fair value of a gnup
of financial assets and financial liabilities on a net basis includes all contracts that are within the scope of, and
accounted for in accordance with, IAS 38 or IFRS 9, even if those contracts do not meet the definitions of finarcial
assets or financial liabilities within 1AS 32,

The amendments to IAS 40 clarify that IAS 40 and IFRS 3 are not mutually exclusive and application of koth
standards may be required. Consequently, an enfity acquiring investment property must determine whether:

{a) the property meets the definition of investment property in terms of IAS 40; and
(b)  the transaction meets the definition of a business combination under IFRS 3

The directors of the Group do not anticipate that the application of these amendments will have a signifiant
impact on the Group's financial statements.

if} Relevant new and amended standards and interpretations in issue but not yet effective in the year ended

31 December 2015

Effective for annual periods beginning on or

after
New and Amendments fo standards
IFRS 9 1 January 2018
IFRS 15 1 January 2017
IFRS 16 1 January 2019
Amendments to IFRS 11 1 January 2016
Amendments to I1AS 16 and IAS 38 1 January 2016
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KENINDIA ASSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(a) Adoption of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS} [continued)

fif) Impact of new and amended standards and interprefations on the financial stafements for the year ended
31 December 2015 and future annual periods

IFRS 8 Financial instruments

IFRS 9, issued in November 2009, introduced new requirements for the classification and measurement of
financial assets. IFRS 9 was amended in QOctober 2010 fo include requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial liabilities and for de-recognition

Key requirements of IFRS &:

. All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of |AS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement are required to be subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair value.
Specifically, debt investments that are held within a business model whose objective is to collect the
contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. All other debt investments and equity investments are measured at
their fair value at the end of subsequent accounting periods. In addition, under IFRS 9, entities may
make an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity investment
{that is not held for trading) in other comprehensive income, with only dividend income generally
recognised in profit or loss,

. With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities designated as at fair value through profit or
loss, IFRS 8 requires that the amount of change in the fair value of the financial liability that is
attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is presented in other comprehensive income,
unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the liability's credit risk in other comprehensive
income would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss, Changes in fair value
attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Under
IAS 38, the entire amount of the change in the fair value of the financial liability designated as Ffair
value through profit or loss is presented in profit or loss.

. The directors of the Group anticipate that the application of IFRS 9 in the future may have a
significant impact on amounts reported in respect of the Group's financial assets and firancial
liabilities (e.g. the Group will classify financial assets as subsequently measured at either amortised
cost or fair value). However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the efiect of
IFRS 9 until a detailed review has been completed.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

In May 2015, IFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single comprehensive model for entities to se in
accounting for revenue arising from contracts with customers. IFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue
recognition guidance including IAS 18 Revenue, IAS 11 Construction Contracts and the related
Interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of IFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise revenue to depict the transfer of pronised
goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects o be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the Standard introduces a 5-step approzch to
revenue recognition;

Step 1: Identify the contract{s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4. Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract
Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation

Under IFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when {or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
‘control' of the goods or services underiying the particular performance cbligation is transfemred b the
customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has been added in IFRS 15 to deal with specific scerarios.
Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by IFRS 15. The directors do not expect the adoption ofiIFRS
15 to have an impact of the Company’s financial statements.
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KENINDIA ASSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
(a) Adoption of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) [continued)

ifi} Impact of new and amended standards and interprefations on the financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2015 and future annual periods (continued)

IFRS 16 Lease

IFRS 16 specifies how an IFRS reporter will recognise, measure, present and disclose leases. The standard
provides a single lessee accounting model, requiring lessees to recognise assets and liabilities for all leases
unless the lease term is 12 months or less or the underlying asset has a low value. Lessors continue to classify
leases as operating or finance, with IFRS 16's approach to lessor accounting substantially unchanged from its
predecessor, IAS 17.

The directors of the Group do net anticipate that the application of the standard will have a significant  impact
on the Group's financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation

The amendmenis to LAS 16 prohibit entities from using a revenue-based depreciation method for items of
property, plant and equipment. The amendments to |AS 38 introduce a rebuttable presumption that reverue is
not an appropriate basis for amortisation of an intangible asset. This presumption can only be rebutted in the
following two limited circumstances:

a} when the intangible asset is expressed as a measure of revenue; or
b) when it can be demonstrated that revenue and consumption of the economic benefits of the intangible

asset are highly correlated.

The amendments apply prospectively for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. Currenly, the
Group uses the straight-line method for depreciation and amortisation for its property and equipmert, and
intangible assets respectively.

The directors of the Group do not anticipate that the application of the standard will have a significant imgact on
the Group’s financial statements.

Annual Improvements 2012-2014 Cycle

The amendments to IFRS 5 adds specific guidance in IFRS 5 for cases in which an entity reclassifies an zsset
from held for sale to held for distribution or vice versa and cases in which held-for-distribution accouning is
discontinued.

The amendments to IFRS 7 adds additional guidance to clarify whether a servicing contract is coninuing
involvement in a transferred asset for the purpose of determining the disclosures required. Clarifies the appliability
of the amendments to IFRS 7 on offsetting disclosures to condensed interim financial statements.

The amendments to IAS 19 clarifies that the high quality corporate bonds used in estimating the discount rite for
post-employment benefits should be denominated in the same currency as the benefits to be paid (thus, thedepth
of the market for high quality corporate bonds should be assessed at currency level),

The amendment to IAS 34 clarifies the meaning of 'elsewhere in the interim report' and requires a cross-refernze
The directors of the Group do not anticipate that the application of these amendments will have a significant mzact
on the Group's financial statements.
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KENINDIA ASSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
(a) Adoption of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) (continued)

iii} Impact of new and amended standards and interpretations on the financial statemeants for the year ended

371 December 2015 and future annual periods {confinued)
IFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations

The amendments to IFRS 11 provide guidance on how to account for the acquisition of an interest in a joint
gperation in which the activities constifute a business as defined in IFRS 3 Business Combinations
Specifically, the amendments state that the relevant principles on accounting for business combinations in
IFRS 3 and cther standards (e.g. IAS 12 Income Taxes regarding recognition of deferred taxes at the time
of acquisition and 1AS 36 Impairment of Assets regarding impairment testing of a cash-generating unit to
which goodwill on acquisition of a joint operation has been allocated) should be applied. The same
requirements should be applied to the formation of a joint operation if and anly if an existing business is
contributed to the joint operation by one of the parties that participate in the joint operation. A joint operator
is also required to disclose the relevant information required by IFRS 3 and other standards for business
combinations.

Entities should apply the amendments prospectively to acquisitions of interests in joint operations (in which
the activities of the joint operations constifute businesses as defined in IFRS 3) occurring from the
beginning of annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016.

The directors of the Group do not anticipate that the application of the standard will have a significant
impact on the Group's financial statements.

¢} Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Group (Company and its
subsidiaries} as at 31 December each year, Subsidiary companies are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the group has control, The group controls an entity when the group is exposed to, or has
rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consclidated from the date on which contral is
transferred to the group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases. The financial
statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting year as the parent company. using
consistent accounting policies. The Group companies are as set out in note 17,

The group applies the acguisition method to account for business combinations, The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities
incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. |dentifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The group recognises
any non-controliing interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, either at fair value or at
the non-controlling interest's proportionate share of the recognised amounts of acquiree's identifiable net
assets. Acquisition-related costs are expensad as incurred

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date carrying valug of the acquirer's
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured to fair vaiue at the acguisition date; any gains
or losses arising from such re-measurement are recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration that Is deemed to be an asset or
liability is recognised in accordance with IAS 38 either in profit or loss or as a change to other
comprehensive income. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not re-smeasured, and its
subseguent settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred the amount of any nen-controlling interest in the acquiree and
the acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquires over the fair value of the
identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration transferred, non-
contrelling interest recognised and previously held interest measured is less than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is recognised directly in
the statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
c)  Basis of Consolidation (continued)

iy Impact of new and amendsad standards and interprefations on the financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2015 and future annual periods {continued)

All intra-group balances, transactions, income and expenses and profits and losses, resulting from intra-
group transactions and dividends, are efiminated in full,

Losses within a subsidiary are attributed to the non-controlling interest even if this results in a deficit
batance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction. If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it;

* Derecognises the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary

*  Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest

*  Derecognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity
= Recognises the fair value consideration received

*  Recognises the fair value of any investment retained

*  Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss

Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognised in ather comprehensive
income to profit or loss or retained earnings, as appropriate.

d) Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group anc
the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration receivec
or receivable for the sale of services, excluding discounts, rebates, and value added taxes or other taxes
Sale of services is recognised upon performance of the service and customer acceptance based on the
proportion of actual service rendered to the total services to be provided.

The following specific criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised:

Gross premiums

Gross recuming prerniums on life are recognised as revenue when payable by the policyholder. For single
premium, business revenue is recognised on the dale on which the policy is effective. Gross general
insurance written premiums comprise the total premiums receivable for the whole period of cover provided
by contracts entered into during the accounting peried and are recognised on the date on which the policy
COMMENCES.

Net premium income is recognised on assumption of risks, and includes estimates of premiums due but not
yet received, less an allowance for cancellations and less uneamed premium.

Unearned premiums represent the proportion of the premiums written in periods up to the accounting date
that relates to the unexpired terms of policies in force at the reporting date, and is computed using the 1/24
method and the 365" methed in general business and group life policies respectively.

Reinsurance premiums

Gross reinsurance premiums on life are recognised as an expense when payable or on the date on which
the policy is effective. Gross general reinsurance premiums written comprise the total premiums payable
for the whole cover provided by contracts entered into the period and are recognised on the date on which
the paolicy incepts.

Unearned reinsurance premiums are thase proportions of premiums written in a year that relate to pericds
of risk afler the reporting date. Unearned reinsurance premiums are deferred over the term of the
underlying direct insurance policies for risks-attaching contracts and over the term of the reinsurance

conftract for losses-occurring contracts.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued]
d} Revenue Recognition

Commission income and fees

Insurance contract policyholders are charged for policy administration services, investment management
services, surrenders and other contract fees, These fees are recognised as revenue over the period in
which the related services are performed. Commission income is recognized in the period in which they are
earned.

Investment income

Interest income is recognised in the statement of profit or loss as it accrues and is calculated by using the
effective interest rate method. Fees and commissions that are an integral part of the effective yield of the
financial asset or liability are recognised as an adjustment to the effective interest rate of the instrument.
Investment income also includes dividend income which is recognised when the right to receive the
payment is established. For listed securities, this is the date the security is listed as ex dividend.

Rental income
Rental income arising from operating leases on investment properties is accounted for on a straight line

basis over the lease terms.

Realised gains and fosses

Realised gains and losses recorded in the statement of profit or loss on investments include gains ard
losses on the financial assets and investment properties, Gains and losses on the sale of investments ae
calculated as the difference between net sales proceeds and the original or amortised cost and are

recorded on occurrence of the sale transaction.

Gross benefits and claims

Gress benefits and claims for life insurance contracts include the cost of all claims arising during the year
including internal and external claims handling costs that are directly related to the processing and
seftlement of claims as well as changes in the gross valuation of insurance contract liabilities. Death clains
and surrenders are recorded on the basis of notifications received. Maturities and annuity payments ze

recorded when due.

General insurance and health claims include all claims occurring during the year, whether reported or not,
related internal and external claims handling costs that are directly related to the processing and settlement
of claims, a reduction for the value of salvage and other recoveries, and any adjustments to clains
outstanding from previous years.

Claims incurred

Claims incurred comprise claims paid in the year and changes in the provision for outstanding claims,
Claims paid represent all payments made during the year, whether arising from events during the yesr,
whether arising from events during that or earlier years. Outstanding claims represent claims arising fron
incidents occurring prior to the accounting date and not settled, and are computed on the basis of the best
information available at the time the records for the period are closed and inclide provisions for clains
incurred but not reported (IBMR). IBNR is computed based on certain minimum percentages of gros
premiurm written on each class of business, as stipulated by the insurance industry regulator, This amount s
included in the ocutstanding claims as at year end.

Claims arising on maturing policies are recognised when the claim becomes due for payment. Death claims
are accounted for on nofification. Surrenders are accounted for on payment,

Outstanding claims in short term business are not discounted.

Reinsurance cfaims
Reinsurance claims are recognised when the related gross insurance claim is recognised according to the

terms of the relevant contract,

Policyfholder benefits

Policyholder benefits incurred comprise benefits paid in the year and changes in the provision for insuranc:
contract liabilities. Benefits paid represent all payments made during the year, whether arising from event;
during that or earlier years. Insurance contract liabilities represent the estimated LUltimate cost of seftling a
benefits accruing to policyholders and are discounted to the present value.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

f

g9)

Product Classification

Insurance contracts are those contracts when the Group (the insurer) has accepted significant insurance risk
from another party {the policyholdars) by agreeing to compensate the policyholders if a specified uncertain
future event (the insured event) adversely affects the policyholders. As a general guideline, the Group
determines whether it has significant insurance risk, by comparing benefits paid with benefits payable if the
insured event did not occur, Insurance contracts can also transfer financial risk.

Investment contracts are those contracts that transfer significant financial risk. Financial risk is the risk of a
possible future change in one or more of a specified interest rate, financial instrument price, commedity price,
foreign exchange rate, index of price or rates, credit rating or credit index or other variable, provided in the case
of a non-financial variable that the variable is not specific to a party to the contract.

Once a contract has been classified as an insurance contract, it remains an insurance contract for the
remainder of ils lifetime, even if the insurance risk reduces significantly during this period, unless all rights and
obligations are extinguished or expire. Investment contracts can however be raclassified as insurance contracts
after inception if insurance risk becomes significant.

Investment contracts are further classified as being either with or without Discretionary Participation Feature
(DPF). DPF is a contractual right to receive, as a supplement to guaranteed benefits, additional benefits that
are:
i} Likely to be a significant portion of the total contractual benefits
ii)y The amount ar timing of which is contractually at the discretion of the issuer
ili) That are contractually based on:

* The performance of a specified pool of contracts or a specified type of contract

* Realised and or unrealised investment returns on a specified pool of assets held by the issuer

= The profit or loss of the company, fund or other entity that issues the contract

Reinsurance

The Group cedes insurance risk in the nomal course of business for all of its businesses. Reinsurance assets
represent balances due from reinsurance companies. Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are estimated in g
manner consistent with the outstanding claims provision or settled claims associated with the reinsurer's
policies and are in accordance with the related reinsurance contract. Reinsurance assets consist of the amouni
due from reinsurers for claims submitted as well as the portion of the current long term Insurance that is ceded
to the reinsurers on the basis of the reinsurance agreement (treaty proportional or facultative),

Reinsurance assets are reviewed for impairment at each reporting date or more frequently when an indicafion of
impaimment arises during the reporting year. Impairment occurs when there is objective evidence as a result of
an event that occurred after initial recognition of the reinsurance asset that the Group may not receive all
outstanding amounts due under the terms of the contract and the event has a reliably measurable impact on the
amounts that the Group will receive from the reinsurer. The impairment loss is recorded in the statement of
profit or loss. Gains or losses on buying reinsurance are recognised in the statement of profit or loss
immediately at the date of purchaze and are not amortised.

Ceded reinsurance arrangements do not relieve the Group from its obligations to policyholders.

The Group also assumes reinsurance risk in the normal course of business for life insurance and non-life
insurance contracts where applicable. Premiums and claims on assumed reinsurance are recognised as
revenue or expenses in the same manner as they would be if the reinsurance were considered direct business,
taking into account the product classification of the reinsured business. Reinsurance liabilities represent
balances due to reinsurance companies. Amounts payable are estimated in a manner consistent with the
related reinsurance contract.

Premiums and claims are presented on a gross basis for both ceded and assumed reinsurance,

Reinsurance assets or liabilities are derecognised when the contractual rights are extinguished or expire or
when the contract is transferred to another party.

Reinsurance contracts that do neot transfer significant insurance risk are accounted for directly through the
statement of financial position. These are deposit assets or financial liabilities that are recognised based on the
consideration paid or received less any explicit identified premiums or fees to be retained by the reinsured.
Investment income on these contracts is accounted for using the effective interest rate method when accrued.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

h)

i

k}

Insurance Receivables

Insurance receivables are recognised when due and measured on initial recognition at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Subsequent to initial recognition, insurance recejvables are measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest rate methed. The carrying value of insurance receivables is reviewed
for impairment whenever events or circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable, with
the impairment loss recorded in the statement of profit or loss.

Insurance receivables are racognised when the recognition criteria for financial assets, as described in note u),
has been met.

Policyholder Benefits

Palicy holder benefits incurred comprise benefits paid in the year and changes in the provision for insurance
cantract liabilities. Benefits paid represent all payments made during the year, whether arising from events during
that or earlier years. Insurance contract liabilities represent the estimated ultimate cost of settling all benefits
accruing to policy holders and are discounted to the present value.

Deposit Administration Contracts

The Group administers the funds of a number of relirement benefit schemes. The liability of the Group fo the
schemes is measured at fair value and is included within the statement of financial position. Deposits,
withdrawals and investments returns are recorded directly as an adjustment to the liability in the statement of
financial position and are not recognised as gross premium and investments income in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.,

Expenses

Expenses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when decrease in future economic benefits related to
a decrease in an asset or an increase of a liability has arisen that can be measured reliably. When economic
benefits are expecled to arise over several accounting periods and the association with income can only be
broadly or indirectly determined expenses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss on the basis of
systematic and rational allocation procedures.

This is often necessary in recognising the equipment associated with the using up of assets such as property,
plant and equipment. In such cases the expense is referred to as a depreciation or amortisation. These allocaion
procedures are intended to recognise expenses in the accounting periods in which the economic benefits
associated with these itemns are consumed or expire.

An expense is recognised immediately in the statement of profit or loss when expenditure produces no futire
economic benefits or when, and to the extent that, future economic benefits do not qualify, or cease to qualify, for
recognition in the statement of financial position as an asset,

Property and Equipment

All categories of property and equipment are initially recognised at cost. Cost includes expenditure dirertly
attributable to the acquisition of the assets. Subsequent costs {including replacement costs) are included in he
asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, when incurred and only when i is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will fiow to the Group and the cost of the ittrm
can be measured reliably. Repairs and maintenance expenses are charged to the statement of profit or lossin
the year in which they are incurred.All items of property and equipment are subsequently carried at cost,
excluding the cost of day-to-day servicing, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment lossis.
Depreciation of an asset begins when it is available for use, that is, when it is in the location and conditbn
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Depreciation of an as:et
ceases at the earlier of the date that the asset is classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal group thalis
classified as held for sale) and the date that the asset is derecognised. Therefors, depreciation does not cege
when the asset becomes idle or is retired from active use unless the asset is fully depreciated.

Depreciation is calculated using the reducing balance basis to write down camrying values of the assets over their
useful lives at the following annual rates:

Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 12.5%
Computer equipment, duplicators and copies 305
Motor vehicles 25%
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)

m})

n

Property and Equipment {continued)

The assets’ residual values, and useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. Impairment reviews are
performed when there are indicators that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Impairment losses are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss as an expense. An item of property and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset or
disposal. Any gain or loss on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is included in the statement of profit or loss in the year the item is

derecognised.

Investment Properties

Investment properties comprise buildings and parts of buildings held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or
both. Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including the transaction costs. The carrying amcunt
includes the cost of replacing part of an existing investment property at the time that cost is incurred if the
recognition criteria are met; and excludes the cost of day-to-day servicing of an investment property. Subseguent
to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at tie
reporting date. Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged between knowledgeable, willig
parties in an arm's length transaction, Fair value specifically excludes an estimated price inflated or deflated by
special terms or circumstances such as typical financing, sale and lease back arrangements, specal
consideration or concessions granted by anyone associated with the sale.

The Group determines fair value without any deductions for transactional costs it may incur on sale or other
disposal. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment properties are included in tte
statement of profit or loss in the year in which they arise.

Fair values are evaluated annually by an accredited external independent valuer. Subsequent expenditure n
investment property where such expenditure increases the future economic value in excess of the origirsl
assessed standard of performance is added to the carrying amount of the investment property. All otfer
subsequent expenditure is recognised as an expense in the year in which it is incurred.

Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when the investmet
property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal. ¢
disposal or retirement of an investment property, the difference between the disposal proceeds and the carryig
amount is charged or credited to the statement of profit or loss in the year of disposal or retirement.

Transfers are made to or from investment property only when there is a change in use evidenced by the end f
owner-occupation, commencement of an operafing lease to another party or completion of construction r
development. For a transfer from investment property to cwner-occupied property, the deemed cost fr
subsequent accounting is the fair value at the date of change in use. If owner- occupied property becomes a
investment property, the Group accounts for such property in accordance with the policy stated under proper
and equipment up to the date of the change in use When the Group completes the construction or developmet
of a self-constructed investment property, any difference between the fair value of the property at that date arni
its previous carrying amount is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Intangible Assets

Acquired computer software is capitalised on the basis of the cosls incurred to acquire and bring to use, th
specific software. Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Followin
initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amorfisation and any accumulate
impairment losses. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be finite. Intangible assets with finit
lives are amortised over the useful economic life at 30 percent per annum, using the reducing balance methot
Amaortisation begins when the asset is available for use, that is, when it is in the location and condition necessar
for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Amortisation ceases at the earlier of th
date that the asset is classified as held for sale {or included in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale
and the date that the asset is derecognised.
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nj

Intangible Assets (continued)

Intangible assets with finite lives are assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible
asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected
pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset is accounted for by changing the
amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The
amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the
expense category consistent with the function of the intangible asset.

Intangible assets are derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal.

Gains or losses arising from derecegnition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised,

o) Leases

]

The determination of whether an amangement is, or contains a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at inception date and reguires an assessment of whether the fulfilment of the armrangement is
dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset, even if
that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement,

Group as a lessee

Finance leases, which transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of
the leased item, are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the fair value of the leased property or, if
lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned between finance
charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance
of the liability. Finance charges are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Leased assets are depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable certainty that
the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the
estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term.

Leases which do not transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the
leased items are operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement
of profit or loss on a straight line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

Leases where the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are
classified as operating leases. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised aver the lease term on the same bases as rental income.

Foreign Currency Transactions

The Group's consclidated financial statements are presented in KShs which is also the Company's functional
currency. That is the currency of the primary economic environment in which Kenindia Assurance Company
Limited operates. Each company in the Group determines its own functional currency and items included in the
financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional CUrrency.

i} Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the functional currency rate prevailing at the date
of the transaction,

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency
rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date. All differences are taken to the statement of profit or loss with
the exception of differences on foreign monetary itermns that form part of a net investment in a foreign
operation. These are recognised in other comprehensive income until the dispasal of the net investment, at
which time they are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Tax changes and credits attributable to
exchange differences on these items are also recorded in other comprehensive income.
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(4]

a)

Foreign Currency Transactions (continued)

Neon-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rats as at the date of the initial transaction and are not subsequently restated. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was determined,

i) Group companies

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into Kenya Shillings at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the reporting date and their statement of profit or loss are translated at exchange rates
prevailing at the date of the transactions. The exchange differences arising on the translation are
recognised in other comprehensive income. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relafing to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.

Taxation
Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount
are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, by the reporting date in the countries where the Group
operates and generates taxable income. Current income tax assets and liabilities also include adjustments for tax
expected to be payable or recoverable in respect of previous periods.

Current income tax relating to items recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive income is recognised in
equity or other comprehensive income and not in the statement of profit or loss.

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate. The inceme
tax charge is analysed between tax in respect of policyholders' returns and the balance which represents thetax
on equity holders' returns. The income tax charge in respect of policyholders' returns reflects the movemert in
current and deferred income tax recognised in respect of those items of income, gains and expenses, which
inure to the benefit of policyholders.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences at the reporting date between the rax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable tempoarary differences, except:

. Where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or lizbility it a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither he
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss,

. In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates z1d

interests in joint ventures, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlad
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future,

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deduclible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax crects
and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which he
deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can =

utilised except:

* Where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the inital
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of tie
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

* In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates ad
interests in joint ventures, deferred fax assets are recognised anly to the extent that it is probable that tle
ternporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against whih
the temporary differences can be utilised.
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q)

r)

B

Taxation {continued)
Deferred tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax assat to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax
asset to ba recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside the profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss.
Deferred tax items are recognised in correfation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity.
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilitiss are offset, ifa legally enforceable right exists to set off current
tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and
the same taxation authority.

Sales taxes and premium taxes

Revenues, expenses and assets and liabilities are recognised net of the amourt of sales taxes and premium

taxes except when:
= the sales or premium tax incured on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the

taxation authority, in which case, the sales tax is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the
asset or as part of the expense item as applicable,
= receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of sales or premium tax included.

Cutstanding net amounts of sales or premium tax recoverable from, ar payable to, the taxation autharity is
included as part of receivables or payables in the statement of financial position,

Employee Entitlements

Employee entilements to annual leave are recognised when they accrue to employees, A provision is made
for the liability for annual leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to the statement of financial

position.
Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the cbligation. Provisions mainly
relate to leave accrual. Where the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but only when the reimbursemeant is virtially certain, The
expense refating to any provision is presented in the statement of profit or loss net of any reimbursement. If
the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that
reflects, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost,

Retirement Benefits Obligations

The company operates a defined contribution pension scheme for all its employees, the assets of which are
held in trustee administered funds. The retirement plan is funded by payments from both employees and the
company.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [continued)

t} Retirement Benefits Obligations {continued)

The company also contributes to a statutory defined contribution pension scheme, the National Social
Security Fund (NSSF). Contributions are determined by the local statute and currently limited to KShs 200
per employee per month.

The company's contributions to the defined contribution pension scheme are charged to statement of profit
or loss in the year to which they relate.

u) Financial Instruments

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial instruments within the scope of IAS 39 are classified as financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments, available-for-sale financial assets and financial
liabilities. The Group determines the classification of its financial assets and financial liabilities at initial
recognition.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of investments
not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs. The Group initially recognises a
financial asset or financial liability in its statement of financial position when, and only when, the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument, A regular way purchase or sale of financial
assets is recognised and derecognised, as applicable, using trade date accounting. Purchases and sales of
investments are recognised on the trade date, which is the date on which the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. When the Group uses setilement date accounting for an asset that is subsequently measured
at cost or amortised cost, the asset is recognised initially at its fair value on the trade date.

Management determines the appropriate classification of its financial instruments at initial recognition and
designation at every reporting date. The classification depends on the purpose for which the investments
were acquired or originated.

Financial assets are classified as at fair value through profit or loss where the Group’s documented
investment strategy is to manage financial investments on a fair value basis, because the related liabilities
are also managed on this basis. The available-for-sale and held-to-maturity categories are used when the
relevant liability (including shareholders' equity) is passively managed andfor carried at fair value on initial
recognition.

The Group's financial assets include cash and short-term deposits, trade and other receivables, loan and
other receivables and quoted and unquoted financial instruments.

Financial liabilities within the scope of IAS 39 are classified as other financial liabilities. The Group
determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition. The financial liabilities are
recognised iniially at fair value. The Group's financial liabilities include insurance payables and other
payables (see note 30 and 31).

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets and liabilities depends on their classification as follows;

Financial assels at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading and those
designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss, Investments typically bought with the
intention to sell in the near future are classified as held for trading. For investments designated as at fair
value through profit or loss, the following criteria must be met;

. The designation efiminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise
arise from measuring the assets or liabilities or recognising gains or losses on a different basis: or

*  The assets and liabilities are part of a group of financial assets, financial liabilities or both which are
managed and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk
management or investment strategy.

Information regarding these instruments is reported to the key management personnel on a fair value basis.

These investments are initially recorded at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, these investments are
remeasured at fair value, Fair value adjustments and realised gains and losses are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.
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u} Financial Instruments (continued)

Subsequent measurement {continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (financial assets held for trading} comprise quoted shares.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (those designated upon initial recognition at fair value through
profit or loss) comprise deposits with financial institutions and commercial paper.

Held to maturity financial assets
Mon-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities are classified as heid to
maturity when the Group has the positive intention and ability o hold until maturity. They include government
securities (long term business). These investments are initially recognised at cost, being the fair value of the
consideration paid for the acquisition of the investment. All transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
are also included in the cost of the investment. After initial measurement, held-to-maturity financial assets are
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method, less impairment, Gains and losses are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the investments are derecognised or impaired, as well as
through the amortisation process.

Loans and other receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. They include mortgage and policy loans, receivables arising from direct insurance
arrangements and other receivables. These investments are initially recognised at cost, being the fair valus of
the consideration paid for the acquisition of the investment. All transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition are also included in the cost of the investment. After initial measurement, loans and recelvables are
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method (EIR) less impairment. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the statement of profit or loss, Gains and
losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the investments are derecognised or impaired, as
well as through the amortisation process.

Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are designated as available-for-sale or
are not classified in any of the three preceding categories. Available-for-sale financial assets include eouity
investments. Equity investments classified as available-for-sale are those which are neither classified as held for
trading nor designated at fair value through profit or loss. They include government securities (short fermn
business) and investments in unguoted shares. These investments are initially recorded at fair value.

After initial measurement, available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value with
unrealised gains or losses recognised and reported as a separate component in other comprehensive income in
the available-for-sale reserve until the investment is derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or loss is
recognised in other operating income or the investment is determined to be impaired or the cumulative loss is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss in finance cost and removed from available-for-sale reserve. Dn
derecegnition or impaiment, the cumulative fair value gains and losses previously reported in equity are
transferred to the statement of profit or loss.

The Group evaluates its available-for-sale financial assets to determine whether the ability and intention to seli
them in the near term would still be appropriate. In the case where the Group is unable to trade these finandal
assets due to inactive markets and management's intention significantly changes to do so in the foreseeatie
future, the Group may elect to reclassify these financial assets in rare circumstances. Reclassification to loas
and receivables is permitted when the financial asset meets the definition of loans and receivables ad
management has the intention and ability to hold these assets for the foreseeable future or until maturity. Tie
reclassification to held to maturity is permitted only when the entity has the ability and intention to hold the
financial asset until maturity. For a financial asset reclassified out of the available-for-sale category, any previoes
gain or loss on that asset that has been recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining Ife
of the investment using the EIR, Any difference between the new amortised cost and the expected cash flowsis
also amortised over the remaining life of the asset using the EIR. If the asset is subsequently determined to ke
impaired then the amount recorded in equity is reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.
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u} Financial Instruments [continued)

Financial liabilifies

Financial liabilities are recognised when due and measured on initial recognition at the fair value of the
consideration received less directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, other financial
liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Gains and losses are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate method {EIR) amertisation process.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are actively traded in organised financial markets is determined by
reference to quoted market bid prices for assets and offer prices for liabilities, at the close of business on the
reporting date, without any deduction for fransaction costs.

For financial instruments where there is not an active market, the fair value is determined by using appropriata
valuation technigques. Valuation technigues include the discounted cash flow method, comparison to similar
instruments for which market observable prices exist, options pricing medels, credit models and other relevart
valuation models. Certain financial instruments are recorded al fair value using valuation techniques because
current market transactions or cbservable market data are not available. Their fair value is determined using a
valuation model that has been tested against prices or inputs to actual market transactions and using the
Group's best estimate of the most appropriate model assumptions.

For discounted cash flow techniques, estimated future cash flows are based on management's best estimaes
and the discount rate used is a market related rate for a similar instrument. The use of different pricing mooels
and assumptions could produce materially different estimates of fair values.

The fair value of floating rate and overnight deposits with credit instituticns is their carrying value. The carryng
value is the cost of the deposit and accrued interest. The fair value of fixed interest bearing deposits is estimaed
using discounted cash flow techniques, Expected cash flows are discounted at current market rates for simlar
instruments at the reporting date.

If the: fair value cannot be measured reliably, these financial instruments are measured at cost, being the air
value of the consideration paid for the acguisition of the investment or the amount received on issuing he
financial liakility. All transaction costs directly attributable to the acguisition are also included in the cost of he
investment,

An analysis of fair values of financial instruments and further details as to how they are measured are providecin
note 33.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired A
financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evider:ze
of impairment as a result of one or more events that has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset an
incurred ‘loss event') and that loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asiet
or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indicatins
that the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinguencyin
interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation ad
where observable data indicate that there is 2 measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, suchis
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried af amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses individuzally whether objective evidenceaf
impairment exists individually for financial assets that are individually significant, and individually or collectiviy
for financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group determines that no objective evidenceaf
impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, the asset is includedin
a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and that group of financial assets is collectiviy
assessed for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment los
is, or continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective assessment of impairment. The impairmet

assessment is performed at each reporting date.
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uj

Financial Instruments (continued)
Impairment of financial assets {contin ued)

Financial assels camied at amorfised cosf {continued)

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on assets carried at amortised cost has been incurred,
the amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future expected credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate. If a loan has a variable interest
rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate. The camying
amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and that decrease can be related
objectively to an event eccurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss, to the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not exceed what the amortised cost would have
been {at the reversal date) had the particular impairment loss not been recognised in the past.

Available-for-sale financial investments
For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is

objective evidence that an investment or a group of investments is impaired.

In the case of equity investments classified as available-for-sale, cbjective evidence would inclue a
‘'significant or prolonged' decline in the fair value of the investment below its cost. "Significant’ is &t be
evaluated against the original cost of the investment and ‘prolonged’ against the peried in which the fair value
has been below its original cost,

Where there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as the difference between the
acquisifion cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously recognsed
in the statement of profit or loss — is removed from other comprehensive income and recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. Impairment losses on equity investments are not reversed through the staterent
of profit or loss; increases in their fair value after impairment are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income.

Future interest income continues to be acecrued based on the reduced carrying amount of the asset ant is
accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows far the purpose of measuring he
impairment loss. The interest income is recorded as part of finance income. If, in a subsequent year, the air
value of a debt instrument increases and the increase can be objectively refated to an event occurring ater
the impairment loss was recognised in the statement of profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversad through
the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, when applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial asses)
is derecognised when:

»The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or
*The Group retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, or has assumed an obligation to pay te
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a 'pass-through' arrangement ad

either
a) The Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
b) The Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asst,

but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has fransferred its right to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pas-
through arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of te
asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised fo the extent of the Group's continuig
involvement in the asset. Continuing involvemnent that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferrd
asset is measured at the lower of the criginal carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount ¢
consideration that the Group could be required to repay. In that case, the Group also recognises o
associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that refiects (i
rights and obligations that the Group has retained. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarante
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and tk
maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
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v)

w)

Financial Instruments (continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the fiability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by ancther from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and
the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss,

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group
estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or
cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.

The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assels or groups of assets, Where the carrying
amount of an asset or cash generating unit (CGU) exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of maney and the risks
specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs to sell, recent market transactions are taken into
account, if available, If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.
These calculations are corroborated by valuation muitiples or other available fair value indicators.
Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset,

For assets, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication
exists, the Group makes an estimate of the asset's or CGU's recoverable amount. A previcusly
recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the esfimates used to
determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised, If that is the
case, the camrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. That increased amount
cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Significant Accounting Judgements and Estimates

The preparation of the Group's financial statemants requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the reporting date. However, uncertainty about
these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to
the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in the future periods. These factors could include:

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations and assumptions, which have the most significant
sffect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

Operating lease commitments — Group as a lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its investment prapery portfolio. The Group,
as a lessor, has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arangements,
that it retains all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of these properties and so accounts for
them as operating leases,

Product classification between fnsurance and Investment contracts
The Group uses judgement to distinguish between insurance and investment contracts for its life

products.
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KENINDIA ASSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

w) Significant Accounting Judgements and Estimates (continued)

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reparting
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below,

{a}

Valuation of insurance contract liabililies

Life insurance contract iabilities

The liability for life insurance contracts is either based on current assumptions or on assumptions
established at inception of the contract, reflecting the best estimate at the time increased with a
margin for risk and adverse deviation. All contracts are subject o a liability adequacy test, which
reflect management's best current estimate of future cash flows.

The main assumpticns used relate to mortality, morbidity, longevity, investment returns, expenses,
lapse and surrender rates and discount rates. The Group bases mortality and morkidity on
standard industry mortality tables which reflect historical experiences, adjusted when appropriate
to reflect the Group's unique risk exposure, product characteristics, target markets and own claims
severity and frequency experiences. For those contracts that insure risk related to longevity
prudent allowance is made for expected future mortality improvemnents as well as wide ranging
changes to life style, could result in significant changes to the expected future maortality exposure.

Assumptions on future expense are based aon current expanse levels, adjusted for expected
expense inflation if appropriate. Lapse and surrender rates are based on the Group's historical
experience of lapses and surrenders. Discount rates are based on current industry risk rates,
adjusted for the Group's own risk exposure.

The carrying value at the reporting date of life insurance liabilities is as follows: KShs 41,489,000
(2014: KShs 38676,321) for insurance iabilites and KShs 4,953,607,000 (2014:
KShs 4,182,876,927) for actuarial value of policy holders' liabilities.

Non-iife insurance {which comprises general insurance and healthcare) contract fiabilities

For non-life insurance contracts, estimates have to be made both for the expected ultimate cost of
claims reported at the reporting date and for the expected uitimate cost of claims incurred but not
yet reported at the reporting date (IBNR). It can take a significant period of time before the ultimate
claims cost can be established with certainty and for some type of policies, IBNR elaims form the
majarity of the liability in the statement of financial position.

The key variables include frequency of claims, average claim costs, inflation and average handling
costs and are covered in detail under note 40,

Historical claims development is mainly analysed by accident years, but can also be further
analysed by geographical area, as well as by significant business lines and claim types.

Large claims are usually separately addressed, by being reserved at the face value of loss adjuster
estimates.

Similar judgements, estimates and assumptions are employed in the assessment of adequacy of
provisions for unearned premium. Judgement is also required in determining whether the pattern of
insurance service provided by a contract requires amortisation of unearned premium on a basis
other than time apportionment,

The carrying value at the reporting date of non-life insurance liabilities is as follows: For Group
KShs 5,858,858,000 (2014: KShs 7,569,573,000) and for Company KShs 5,159,721,000 {2014:
KShs 6,782,791,000).
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KENINDIA ASSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
w}  Significant Accounting Judgements and Estimates (continued)

Estimates and assumptions {continued)

)

fc)

x)

y)

Fair value of financial assets determined using valuation lechniques

Where the fair values of financial assets recorded on the statement of financial position cannot be
derived from active markets, they are determined using a variety of valuation techniques that
include the use of discounted cash fiows model andfor mathematical models, The inputs to these
models are derived from observable market data where possible, but where observable market
data are not available, judgement is required to establish fair values.

For discounted cash flow analysis, estimated future cash flows and discount rates are based on
current market information and rates applicable to financial instruments with similar yields, credit
guality and maturity characteristics. Estimated future cash fiows are influenced by factors such as
economic conditions ({including country specific risks), concentrations in specific industries, types of
instruments or currencies, market liquidity and financial conditions of counterparties. Discount rates
are influenced by risk free interest rates and credit risk,

Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial
instruments,

Leferred tax assets and liabilities

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations and the amount and
timing of future taxable income. Given the wide range of international business relationships and
the long-term nature and complexity of existing contractual agreements, differences arising
between the actual results and the assumptions made, or future changes to such assumpticns,
could necessitate future adjustments to tax income and expense already recorded. The Group
establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates, for possible consequences of audits by the
tax authorities of the respective countries in which it operates. The amount of such provisions is
based on various factors, such as experience of previous tax audits and differing interpretations of
tax regulations by the taxable entity and the responsible tax authority. Such differences of
interpretation may arise on a wide variety of issues depending on the conditions prevailing in the
respective Group company’s domicile.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised, Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised,
based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits, together with future tax planning
strategies.

Details on deferred taxes are disclosed in Mote 29,

{d} Property and equipment and infangible assets

Critical estimates are made by the directors in determining depreciation and amortisation rates for
property and equipment and intangible assets. The rates used are set out in the accounting policy
(I} and (n) above.

Dividends

Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised as a liability and deducted from equity when they are
approved by the Group's shareholders. Interim dividends (if any) are deducted from equity when they
are paid.

Dividends for the year that are approved after the reporting date are dealt with as an event after the
reporting date.

Insurance Payables

Insurance payables are recognised when due and measured on initial recognition &t the fair value of
the consideration received less directly atirbutable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recagnition, they are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.
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KENINDIA ASSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

{w) Insurance Payables {continued)

z)

Derecognifion of insurance payables
Insurance payables are derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or

expired.
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less in the statement of financial position,

For the purpose of the consolidated and company's statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
consist of cash and cash equivalents as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts (if any),

aa) Share Capital

ab)

ac)

The Group has issued ordinary shares that are classified as equity. Incremental external costs that are directly
attributable to the issue of these shares are recognised in equity, net of tax.

Events After Reporting Date

The financial statements are adjusted to reflect events that occurred between the reporting date and the date
when the financial statements are authorised for issue, provided they give evidence of conditions that existed
at the reporting date. Events that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting date are disclosed,
but do not result in an adjustment of the financial statements themselves.

Insurance Contract Liabilities
Life insurance contract llabilitfes

Life insurance liabiliies are recognised when contracts are entered into and premiums are charged. These
liabilities are measured by using the net premium method. The liability is determined as the sum of the
discounted value of the expected future benefits, claims handling and policy administration expenses,
palicyholder options and guarantees and investment income from assets backing such liabilities, which are
directly related to the contract, less the discounted value of the expected theoretical premiums that would be
required to meet the future cash outflows based on the valuation assumptions used. The liability is sither
based on current assumptions or calculated using the assumptions established at the time the contract was
issued, in which case a margin for risk and adverse deviation is generally included.

A separate reserve for longevity may be established and included in the measurement of the [iability.
Furthermore, the liability for life insurance contracts comprises the provision for unearned premiums and
unexpired risks, as well as for claims outstanding, which includes an estimate of the incured claims that have
not yet been reported to the Group.

Adjustments to the liabilifies at each reporting date are recorded in the statement of profit or loss. Profits
originated from margins of adverse deviations on run-off centracts, are recegnised in the statement of profit or
loss over the life of the contract, whereas losses are fully recognised in the statemenit of profit or loss during
the first year of run-off. The liability is derecognised when the contract expires, is discharged or is cancelled.

At each reporting date, an assessment is made of whether the recognised life insurance liabilities are
adequate, by using an existing liability adequacy test. The liability value is adjusted to the extent that it is
insufficient to meet future benefits and expenses. In performing the adequacy test, current best estimates of
future contractual cash flows, including related cash flows such as claims handling and policy administration
expenses, policyholder options and guarantees, as well as investment income from assets backing such
liabilities, are used. A number of valuation methods are applied, including discounted cash flows. Aggregation
levels and the level of prudence applied in the test are consistent with IFRS 4 (Insurance Contracts)
requirements. To the extent that the test involves discounting of cash flows, the interest rate appiied may be
based on management's prudent expectation of current market interest rates, Any inadequacy is recorded in
the statement of profit or loss, by establishing a technical reserve for the remaining loss. In subsequent
periods, the liability for a block of business that has failed the adequacy test is based on the assumpfions that
are established at the time of the loss recognition. Impairment losses resulting from liability adeguacy testing
can be reversed in future years if the impairment no longer exists.
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KENINDIA ASSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

{a)

ac) Insurance Contract Liabilities {continued)

Non-life insurance {which comprises general insurance and healthcare) contract fiabilities

Mon-life insurance contract liabilities are recognised when contracts are entered into and premiums are
charged. These liabilities are known as the outstanding claims provision, which are based on the estimated
ultimate cost of all claims incurred but not settled at the reporting date, whether reported or not, together
with related claims handling costs and reduction for the expected value of salvage and other recoveries.
Delays can be experienced in the notification and seftlement of certain types of claims, therefore the
ultimate cost of these cannot be known with certainty al the reporting date. The liability is calculated at the
reporting date using actual claims data. The liability is not discounted for the time value af money. No
provision for equalisation or catastrophe reserves is recognised. The liabilities are derecognised when the
contract expires, is discharged or is cancelled,

The provision for unearned premiums represents premiums received for risks that have not yet expired.
Generally the reserve is released over the term of the contract and is recognised as premium income. At
each reporting date the Group reviews its unexpired risk and a liability adequacy test is performed to
determine whether there is any overall excess of expected claims ower uneamed premiums. This
calculation uses current estimates of future contractual cash fiows after taking account of the investment
return expected to arise on assets relating to the relevant non-life insurance technical provisions, If these
estimates show that the carrying amount of the unearned premiums is inadequate, the deficiency is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss by setting up a provision for liability adequacy. There was no
deficiency noted at the reporting date,

ad) Off-setting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial
position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the [iabilities simultaneously.
Income and expenses will not be offset in the consclidated statement of profit or loss unless required or
permitted by any accounting standard or interpretation, as specifically disclosed in the accounting policies
of the Group.

ae) Statutory reserve

The stalutory reserve represents a reserve maintained within the long term assurance business and
represents amounts recommended for transfer by the actuary from actuarial valuation as reguired by the
Kenyan Insurance Act.

Transfers into the statutory reserve are processed through the statement of changes in equity. Transfers
from the statutory reserve relates to amounts on the life assurance business which is distributable as
dividends upon the recommendation of the actuary.

Gross earned premium income
Gross earned premium income

The company’s insurance business is organised into two main divisions, short term insurance business and long
term assurance business. Long term assurance business comprises life assurance business and deposit
administration business. Life assurance business relates to the underwriing of risks relating to death of an
insured person, and includes contracts subject to the payment of premiums for a tem dependert on the
termination or continuance of the life of an insurad person. Short ferm insurance business relates to all other
categories of general insurance business written by the company, analysed into several sub-classes of business
based on the nature of the assumed risks. Approximately 82% of the Group's business is generated in Kenya.

The premium income of the Group and the Company can be analysed between the main classes of business as
shown below:
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KENINDIA ASSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

2, Gross eamed premium income

{a) Gross earned premium income

The company's insurance business is organised into two main divisions, short term insurance business and long term
assurance business. Long term assurance business comprises life assurance business and deposit adminisiration
business. Life assurance business relates to the underwriting of risks relating to death of an insured person, and
includes contracts subject to the payment of premiums for a term dependent on the termination or continuance of the
life of an insured person. Short term insurance business relates to all other categories of general insurance business
written by the company, analysed into several sub-classes of business based on the nature of the assumed risks.
Approximately 82% of the Group's business is generated in Kenya.

The premium income of the Group and the Company can be analysed between the main classes of business as shown

helow;

Group Company
2015 2014 2015 2014
KShs'000 KShs’000 KShs'000 KShs'000
Short term insurance business:
Muotor 1,007,632 972,259 754,452 693,331
Fire 1,002,394 919,342 757,682 688,311
Personal accident and medical 156,470 146,278 166,470 146,278
Marine 272,017 289,180 242 910 251,757
Theft 286,064 311,813 286,064 311,813
Workmen compensation 352,060 406,688 352,060 406,688
Engineering 174,248 203,370 166,063 150,263
Liability 33,904 32,498 33,904 32,498
Awviation 54,209 20,417 - -
Other miscellanecus 161,259 178,020 19,190 22,002
3,500,257 3,479,865 2,768,805 2,703,496
Long term assurance business:
Ordinary life 1,001,162 £98,544 1,001,162 698,544
Group life 43 860 39,968 43,860 39,968
1,045,022 738,512 1,045,022 738,412
4,545,279 4,218,377 3,813,827 3,442,108
(b) Premium ceded to re-insurers on re-
insurance contracts
Long term business {23,389) (23,957) {23,389) (23,957)
Short term business {1,555.627) (1,628,057 (1,125,405) (1.093,831)
Change in unearned premiums provision
(Mote 28) 2,536 71,362 23,288 18,064
(1,553,091) {1,556,685) (1,102,137) {1,075,76<)
Met earned premium income 2,968,799 2,637,725 2,688,301 2,342,28"
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KENINDIA ASSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

3. Investment income

(a)Group 2015

Interest from government securities (Held to maturity)
Interest from government securities [Available-for-sale)
Bank deposit interest

Loan interest

Operating lease incomefrent from investment properties
Gains an valuation of investment properties {MNote 16)
Dividends receivable from equity investments
Commercial paper interest

Lossf{gains) on valuation of quoted investments

Other investment charges/QOperating expenses on investrment

properties
Gainsf{loss) on sale of guoted investments
Gain on disposal of Kenindia Business Park

(b)Group 2014

Interest from government securities (Held to maturity)
Interest from government securities (Available-for-sale)
Bank deposit interest

Loan interest

Operating lease income/rent from investment properties
Gains on valuation of investment properties (Mote 16)
Dividends receivable from equity investments
Commercial paper interest

Gains on valuation of quoted investments

Other investment charges

Loss on sale of quoted investments

47

Long term  Short term
assurance insurance
business business Total
KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000
2,267,013 6,816 2,273,829
- 102,300 102,300
85,214 90,748 175,962
6,685 125 6,820
60,387 52,851 113,238
370,715 92,758 463 473
7.041 15,794 22,835
9,198 1,870 11,068
(38.475) (10,254) (48,729}
{35,100) (45,976) {81,076)
359 194 553
- 876,837 976,837
2,733,047 1,284,063 4,017,110
Long term  Short term
assurance insurance
business business Total
KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000
1,876,141 - 1,875,14
- 106,213 108,211
82,454 92,802 175,256
7,150 262 7,41:
62,859 50,553 113,412
140,336 78,540 218,87¢
1,882 11,162 13,044
14,290 - 14,29C
16,198 7,595 23,783
[17,630) {58,277 (76,907
{31) - (31
2,183,649 287,850 2471,499




KENINDIA ASSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

3. Investment income Long term Short term
assurance insurance
business business Total
KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000
{a)Company 2015
Interest from government securities (Held to maturity) 2,267,013 351 2,267,364
Interest from government securities {Available-for-sale) - 102,300 102,300
Bank deposit interest 85,214 70,564 155,778
Loan interest 6,695 22 6717
Operating lease incomefrent from investment properties 60,387 52,851 113,238
Gains on valuation of investment properties {Maote 16) 370,715 92,758 463,473
Dividends receivable from equity investments 7,041 14,897 21,938
Commercial paper interest 9,188 1,870 11,068
Loss on valuation of quoted investments [38,475) {12,038) (50,513)
Other investment charges/Operating expenses on investment
properties (35,100) (45,976) (87,078)
Gains on sale of quoted investments 359 194 553
Gain on disposal of Kenindia Business Park - 976,837 9YE,B3T
2,733,047 1,254,630 3987677
(a) Company 2014
Interest from government securities {Held to maturity) 1,876,141 - 1,876,141
Interest from government securities (Available-for-sale) - 99,481 99481
Bank deposit interest 82,454 71,115 153569
Loan interest 7150 150 7300
Operating lease incomefrent from investment properties 62,859 50,553 113412
Gains on valuation of investment properties {Note 16) 140,336 78,540 218876
Dividends receivable from equity investments 1,882 10,B&7 12749
Commercial paper interest 14,290 - 14 290
Gains on valuation of quoted investments 16,198 5,582 21780
Other investment charges {17.630) (59,277 (T6907)
Loss on sale of quoted investments (31) - (31)
2,183,649 257,011 2,440,560
4.{a) Commission income
Group Company
2015 2014 2015 14
KShs ‘000 KShs ‘000 KShs ‘000 KShs*0:00
Re-insurance commission income 513,202 436,967 396,845 301368
{b}) Commission expense
Group Company
2015 2014 2015 14
KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShe000
Commissions on direct insurance
arrangements 684,265 664,214 573,227 525089
Commissions on inward
re-insurance arrangements 23,040 10,659 23,040 10659
707,305 674,873 596,267 539748
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KENINDIA ASSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

4.{c} Other income

(a) Group Long term Short term Long term Short term
assurance insurance Total assurance insurance Total
business business 2015 business business 2014

KShs’000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000

Gain on disposal of property

and eguipment 170 839 1,008 146 5a2 738
Exchange gain - 54,139 54,139 - 15,784 15,794
Administration fees 1.215 1,215 2,198 2,198
Miscellaneous income [338) 5,743 5,408 3,693 4339 8.032

{168) 61,936 61,768 3,839 22,924 26,763

{b) Company
Gain on disposal of property

and equipment 170 1,137 1,307 145 935 1,081
Exchange loss - {1,196) {1,196) - (49) (49)
Administration fees - 1,215 1,215 - 2,199 2199
Miscellaneous income (338) 865 527 3,693 4,551 8,244

(168) 2,021 1,853 3,839 7,636 11,475

5.{a) Claims expenses

Group Company
2015 2014 2015 2014

KShs ‘000 KShs ‘000 KShs ‘000 KShs ‘000
Paid claims long term business 358,728 327,271 358.728 327,271
Paid claims short term business 1,239,966 1,756,275 1,160,360 1,058,182
Change in outstanding claims and
other movements 2,712,361 1,832,164 2,341,658 1,953,566
Gross claims 4,311,055 3.915,710 3,860,746 3,339,019
Surrender and annuity payments 1,034,041 1,126,544 1,034,041 1,126,544
Less: amounts recoverable from
re-insurers (818,431) (916,584) {517,302) {522.731)
Net claims payable 4,526,665 4,125,670 4,377 485 3,942,832
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KENINDIA ASSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

§ (b} Operating expenses

Group

Staff costs

Rent

Printing and stationery
Telephone expenses
Travelling expenses
Repairs and maintenance
expenditure
Advertisement expenses
Entertainment expenses
Bank charges

Interest on car loans
Training expenses
General office expenses

Staff costs include the following:
- Salaries and wages

- Social security benefit costs

- Retirement benefit costs

Company

Staff costs

Rent

Printing and stationery
Telephone expenses
Travelling expenses
Repairs and maintenance
expenditure
Advertisement expenses
Entertainment expenses
Bank charges

Interest on car loans
Training expenses
General office expenses

Staff costs include the following;
- Salaries and wages

- Social security benefit costs

- Retirement benefit costs

The number of persons employed by the Group at year end was 297 (2014: 289). At company level, the employeesis at

were 261 (2014: 268).

Long term Short term Long term Short term
assurance insurance Total assurance insurance Total
business business 2015 business business 2014
KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000
129,156 439 449 568,605 114,307 459 443 573,750
8,853 30,898 39,751 7,232 35,085 42,317
5172 15,414 20,586 3.753 15,742 19,455
3,669 10,348 14,017 2,780 10,351 13,131
8,379 19,266 27,645 9,069 18,404 27,473
B8.759 18,580 27,338 5129 15.580 20,709
17,845 28,351 45,196 16,963 30,937 47,900
5,656 5,298 10,954 2,234 4,233 6,467
1,847 2,029 3,976 2,366 2,986 5,382
- 835 835 - - -
4,517 4,899 9,416 2,646 7,278 9,924
67.697 113,064 180,762 44 955 79,175 124,130
261,650 688,431 950,081 211,434 679,214 890,648
116,336 376,434 492 770 899,697 400,228 49¢ 925
313 13,866 14,179 2,203 11,471 13674
12,507 49,149 61,656 12,407 47,744 60,151
129,156 439,449 568,605 114,307 459,443 573750
Long term Short term Long term  Short term
assurance insurance Total assurance insurance Total
business  business 2015 business business 2014
KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs 000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000
129,156 357,209 486,365 114,307 384, 504 508,811
8,853 13,100 21,953 7,232 19,095 26,327
5172 13,840 19,012 3,753 13,691 17,444
3,669 7,003 10,672 2780 7,572 1(,352
8379 12,051 20,430 9,069 12,375 21444
8,759 13,494 22,253 5,129 12,662 17,791
17,845 23,920 41,765 16,963 27,576 44539
5656 5,298 10,954 2,234 4,233 6467
1.947 1.539 3,488 2,366 1,984 4350
= 835 835 - . -
4,517 4,454 8,971 2,646 7.171 9817
67,697 86,156 153,853 44 955 55,415 100370
261,650 538,899 800,549 211,434 556,278 767712
116,336 307,038 423,375 99 697 345,779 445478
313 1,021 1,334 2203 981 3184
12,507 49, 149 61,656 12,407 47 744 60,51
129,156 357,209 486,365 114,307 394,504 508,118
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KENINDIA ASSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

6. Other expenses

{a) Group

Depreciation and amortisation
Amaortisation of prepaid lease
Audit fee

Conations

Directors' remuneration {Note 39)
Other directors' expenses

(a) Company

{a

—

Depreciation and amortisation
Amortisation of prepaid lease
Audit fee

Donations

Directors’ remuneration (Note 39)
Other directors' expenses

Income tax
Statement of financial position

Taxation payable/{recoverable)
Group (Taxation recoverable)

Balance brought forward
Charge for the year

Under provision in previous year
Reclassification

Paid during the year

Balance carried forward

(b) Group (Taxation payable)

Balance brought forward
Reclassification

Charge for the year
Paid during the year
Exchange differences

Balance carried forward

Long term  Short term Long term Short term
assurance insurance Total assurance insurance Total
business business 2015 business business 2014
KShs'000  KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000
6,396 40,885 47,282 6,765 33,019 39,784
38,722 410 39,132 441 397 838
1,552 7,186 8,748 1,239 7,000 8,239
665 1,245 1,910 164 503 667
508 1.518 2,025 5086 1,519 2,025
3,171 10,675 13,846 2,982 11,617 14,599
51,012 61,931 112,943 12,097 54,055 66,152
Long term Short term Long term Short term
assurance [nsurance Total assurance insurance Total
business business 2015 business business 2014
KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs’000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs’000
6,395 36,468 42 864 6,765 30,489 7,264
38,722 408 38,130 441 395 836
1,552 4,398 5,950 1,239 3,718 4 957
665 1,245 1,810 164 431 5395
506 1,519 2,025 506 1,519 2025
3,171 8,712 11,883 2,882 9,073 12,055
51,012 52,750 103,762 12,097 45,635 5,732
Long term Short term Long term Short term
assurance insurance Total assurance insurance lotal
business business 2015 business business 2014
K5hs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShey 000
- {59,761}  (59,761) - {33,868) (33858)
- 2621 2,621 - 7,951 1951
- {17) (17) - 104 104
- 1.010 1,010 - - -
" 5 = - {33,848) (3324-8)
- {56,147)  (56,147) - (59,761) (5976 1)
30,005 - 30,005 12,005 - 120058
B {1,010} (1,010} - - -
18,000 13,209 31,209 18,000 - 18030
- {8,613) (8,613) - - -
- 1,278 1,278 - - -
48,005 4,864 52,869 30,005 - IS

51



KENINDIA ASSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

7. Income tax {continued)
Statement of financial position (continued)

Taxation payablef{recoverable) (conti nued)

Long term Short term Long term Short term

assurance insurance Total assurance insurance Total
business business 2015 business  business 2014
KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs’000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000
(b) Company
Balance brought forward 30,005 (58,479)  (28,474) 12,005 (23,574) (11.569)
Charge for the year 18,000 2,591 20,591 18,000 897 18,897
Under provision in previous year - - - - 104 104
Paid during the year - - - - (35,906) {35,806)
Balance carried forward 48,005 {55,888) {7,883) 30,005 {58,479) (28,474)
Statement of profit or loss Long term Short term Long term Short term
assurance insurance Total assurance insurance Total
Current income tax business business 2015 business business 2014
KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000
{c) Group
Current income tax charge 18,000 15,830 33,830 18,000 7.951 25,951
Under provision in previous year - - - - 104 104
Deferred tax charge/|credit) {20,544) 19,738 (806) |73,656)  (109,140) (182 796)

{2,544) 36,568 33,024  (55,656)  (101,085)  (156,741)

The Group’s current tax charge is computed in accordance with the income tax rules applicable to composite Kenyan
Insurance companies. A reconciliation of the tax charge is shown below.

Long term Short term Long term Short term
assurance insurance Total assurance insurance Total
Group business  business 2015  business  business 2014

KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs’000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000

Profit /{less) before taxation 60,000 796,715  BSB, 715 60,000  (336,213) [276,213)
Tax calculated at a statutory tax rate of 18,000 239,015 257,015 18,000  {100,864) (82,8€4)
30%

Tax effect of income not subject to tax - (351,280) (351,280) = (90,190) (90,190)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible

for tax purposes - 128,085 128,095 - 199,005 189,005
Current income tax charge 18,000 15,830 33,830 18,000 7,951 25,951
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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7. Income tax (continued)

Statement of profit or loss (continued)

Current income tax Long term Short term Long term Short term
assurance insurance Total assurance insurance Total
business business 2015 business business 2014
{d) Company KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000
Current income tax charge 18,000 2,591 20,591 18,000 Bar 18,897
Under provision in previous year - - - - 104 104
Deferred tax charge/(credit) (20,544) 13,723 {6,821) (73,6568) (108,941) {182,597)
{2,544) 16,314 13,770 (55,656)  (107,940) (163,596)
Company KShs'000 KShs’000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs000
Profit/{loss) before taxation 60,000 744678 804,678 60,000  [300,634) (240,654)
Tax calculated at a statutory tax rate of 18,000 223403 241,403 18,000 (90,190) {72,190)
30%
Tax effect of income not subject to tax - {348,905) (348,905) - (90,190) {90,130)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible - 128,093 128,093 - 181,277 181,77
for tax purposes
Current income tax charge 18,000 2,591 20,591 18,000 897 18,897
8. Share capital
Number of shares Share capital
2015 2014 2015 2014
KShs'000 KShs'0i0
Authorised (Short-term business)
Ordinary shares of KShs 100 each 5,500,000 5,500,000 550,000 550,010
Authaorised (Long-term business)
Ordinary shares of KShs 100 each 500,000 500,000 50,000 50,010
Total 6,000,000 6,000,000 600,000 600,00
Ordinary shares: Issued and fully paid
At start and end of year (Short-term business) 4,000,002 4,000,002 400,000 400,000
Increase in share capital - - - -
At end year {Short term business) 4,000,002 4 000,002 400,000 400,000
At start of year {Long-term business) 1,613,880 1.613,880 161,388 161,388
Increase in share capital - - - -
At end of year {Long-term business) 1,613,880 1,613,880 161,388 161,38
Total 5,613,882 5,613,882 561,388 561,38

All erdinary shares issued are fully paid.
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KENINDIA ASSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

8.  Share capital (continued)
Profit/{loss) before taxation

Profit before tax in the year to 31 December 2015 was KShs 856.715 million {2014: loss of KShs 276.213). The less in
year in 2014 was arrived at after recognition of an additional provision of KShs 501 million in respect of IBMR as aresu
adopting the technical guidelines issued by IRA on valuation of technical liabilities.

Earnings/{loss) per share

Basic earnings/ {loss} per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the parent by the number of shares outstanding at the reporting date.

Diluted earnings/{loss)per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the parent by the number of ordinary shares cutstanding during the year plus the number of ordinary
shares that would be issued on the conversion of all the dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares. Basic
and diluted earnings/{loss) per share are the same, Group earnings/{loss) reported for 2015 and 2014 were
KShs 812,532,000 and KShs 125,882,000 respectively. Company earnings/(loss) reperted for 2015 and 2014 were
KShs 790,808,000 and KShs 137,038,000 respectively.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted eamings/{loss) per share computatons:

Group Company

2015 2014 2015 2014
KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs’00€

Met profit/{loss} atfributable to ordinary
shareholders for basic and diluted earnings 812,632 {125,8592) 780,908 (137,038
2015 2014 2015 2014
KShs KShs KShs KShs
Number of ordinary shares for basic and diluted 5,613,882 5613,882 5,613,882 5,613,882

(loss)fearnings per share

Basic earnings/({loss) per share (KShs) 144.74 (22.43) 140.88 {24.41)
Diluted earningsf{loss) per share (KShs) 144.74 (22.43) 140.88 (24.41)

There have been no other transactions involving ordinary shares or potential ordinary shares between the reporting
date and the date of completion of these financial statements

Dividend per share

Dividend per share is calculated by dividing dividends for the year by the weighted average number of ordinary shzes
outstanding during the year.

2015 2014

KShs' 000 KShs’ 000

Dividend proposed KShs 56,140 KShs Nil
Dividend per share KShs 10 KShs Nil

In respect of the current year, the Directors propose the payment of a dividend of KShs 10 (2014: KShs Nil) per hare
equivalent to total sum of KShs 56.14million (2014: KShs Nil) be paid to the shareholders.

Payment of dividends is subject to withholding tax at the rate of 5% for residents and 10% for non-residents =aor
resident sharehclders. withholding tax is only deductible where the sharehelding is below 12.5%.



KENINDIA ASSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

9. Reserves

la) Available-for-sale reserve

The fair value reserve relate to valuation of available-for-sale financial instruments. The movement in the fair value
reserve for the Group and Company is shown below and in note 25 and in the statement of other comprehensive

income on pages 8 and 10 respectively,

Group Company

2015 2014 2015 2014

KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs’000 KShs'000

At 1 January 48,278 16,408 47,711 16,413

Net gainf{loss) on available-for-sale investments:

Government securities {52,319) 31,870 {51.275) 31,298
Adjustment for losses included in income

statement on disposal of investments 551 - 551 -

Net gaini(loss) {51,768) 31,870 (50,724) 31,298

At 31 December {3,490) 48,278 {3,013) 47,711

(b) Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve is used to record exchange differences arising from the translation of financial

statements of foreign operations.

2015 2014 2015 2014
KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs"000 KShs'000
At 1 January (15,254) (12,343} - -
Exchange difference on translation (2.672) (2,911) - -
Income tax effect - - - -
At 31 December (17,926) {15,254) - -
c} Revaluation reserve (Group and Company)
2015 2014
KShs'000 KShs'000
At 1 January 236,119 208,260
Revaluation of buildings 57,033 25404
Deferred tax on revaluation {17,110) {7,621)
Depreciation released on revaluation 14,300 13,661
54,223 31,444
Transfer of excess depreciation (915) {3,585)
At 31 December 289,427 236,119
(d) Non-controlling interests-Group
2015 2014
KShs“000 KShs‘000
At 1 January 54,172 47,752
Share of prefit for the year 11,159 6,420
At 31 December 65,331 54,172
The non-controfling interests consist of:
Equity interests held by individual shareholders 35% 65,331 | 54,172
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KENINDIA ASSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

10. Retained earnings

1.

Included within retained earnings are gains arising from the revaluation of investment properties whose distribution is
subject to restrictions imposed by legislation. The Commissianer of Insurance has placed restrictions on distribution of
gains arising from the revaluation of investment properties of KShs 2,520.063 million {KShs 2,056.59 million for 2014).

The movement for the year is shown below.

Group Company

2015 2014 2015 2014
Retained earnings KShs'000 KShs"000 KShs'000 KShs'000
At 1 January-as previously reported 291,201 1,267,950 914,335 1,202,230
Prior year adjustment (Note 42) - (98,304) - (98,304)
At 1 January —as restated 991,201 1,169,646 914,335 1,103,926
Profit/{loss) for the year 740 988 {241,548) 728,364 {252,69<)
Transfer of excess depreciation 915 3,585 915 3,585
Dividends paid - (56,138) - (56,138)
Transfer from statutory reserve to
retained earnings 62,544 115,656 62,544 115,655
At 31 December 1,804,648 291,201 1,706,158 914,335

Included in the retained earnings is gain on transfer of one part of the properties (Kenindia Business Park) fron
General Business to Life Business. The gain amounting to KShs 976,837,000 is net distributable to shareholders.

Statutory reserves

The statutory reserve represents profits from the long term business whose distribution is subject to restricions
imposed by the Kenyan Insurance Act. The Act restricts the amounts of surpluses of the long term business availabie
for distribution to shareholders to 30% of the accumulated profits of the life business.

Movement in the statutory reserve for the Group and Company is shown below and in the statement of changesin
equity on pages 17, 18, 18 and 20 respectively.

Group Company
2015 2014 2014 201 4
Statutory reserve KShs'000 KShs'000  KShs'000 KShs'0MO
At 1 January 318,516 318,516 318,516 31856
Surplus for the year 62,544 115,656 62,544 115,616
Transfer to retained earnings {62,544 {115,656} (B2,544) {115685)
At 31 December 318,516 318,516 318,516 318,56
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

12.

(al

Property and equipment (Group)

31 December 2015

Cost

At 1 January 2015
Additions

Revaluation surplus
Disposals

Exchange differences

At 31 December 2015

Depreciation

At 01 January 2015
Charge for the year
Eliminated on revaluation
Eliminated on disposal
Exchange differences

At 31 December 2015

Met book value
At 31 December 2015

Buildings Motor Computer Fittings and  Work-in-
KShs'000 vehicles equipment equipment  progress Total
KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 kShs'000 KShs'000
571,860 53,222 152,754 181,564 - 859,400
153 25,850 32,228 B.928 43,963 111,122
57,033 - - - - 57,033
- (4,881) (204) 4,436) - {9,521)
- {977 1,231) (1,453} - {3,661)
629,046 73,214 183,547 184,603 43,963 1,114,373
- 18,980 140,549 128,807 - 268,338
14,300 14,201 8,897 7,488 - 44,888
(14,300} . “ - - {14,300)
% {2,265) {151) {1,959) - (4,375)
- 1614} {EE66) {1,032) - (2,312)
- 30,302 148,629 133,304 - 12,235
629,046 42,912 34,918 51,299 43,963 §02,138
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12. Property and equipment {Group)

(b)

13.

31 December 2014

Cost

At 1 January 2014
Additions
Revaluation surplus
Disposals

At 31 December 2014

Depreciation

At 1 January 2014
Charge for the year
Eliminated on revaluation
Eliminated on disposal
Exchange differences

At 31 December 2014
Met book value
At 31 December 2014

Motor Computer Fittings and
Buildings vehicles equipment  equipment Total
KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000
510,000 31,702 148,066 167,283 857,051
36 456 32,448 4 986 17,694 81,584
25,404 = - - 25,404
- {10,528) 1208) (3,413) (14,639)
571,860 53,222 152,754 181,564 959,400
- 18,853 135,412 122,800 277,165
13,661 10,571 5,200 8,046 37478
{13,861) - - - {13,6561)
- (10,492) (134) [2,3B5) {13,011)
- 48 71 246 365
- 18,980 140,649 128,807 288,336
571,860 34,242 12,205 52,757 671,064

Work in progress relates to the new computer software.

Mo property and equipment are held as security against any liabilities.

In the opinion of the directors, there is no impairment of property and equipment as at 31 December 2014 and 2015

Property and equipment (Company)

{a) 31 December 2015

Cost

At 1 January 2015
Additions
Revaluation surplus
Disposals

At 31 December 2015

Depreciation

At 1 January 2015
Charge for the year
Eliminated on revaluation
Eliminated on disposal

At 31 December 2015

Met book value
At 31 December 2015

Motor Computer  Fittings and Work-in-
Buildings vehicles equipment equipment progress Total
KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000  KShs'000 KShs’e00
571,860 44,378 146,532 169,297 - 32067
153 25,850 8,960 7,530 43,963 87,156
57,033 - - - - 57,133
- 4,788} (B9) (3.288) = {8,175)
43,963
629,046 65,440 156,403 173,529 1,068181
- 14,190 135,565 121,359 - 27114
14,300 13,250 6,275 6,643 - 40458
(14,300) - - - - (14,500)
- 12.205) {79) {1,477) - (361)
25,235 141,761 126,525 - 29321
629,046 40,205 14,642 47,004 43,963 774,50
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13. Property and equipment Fittings
{Company) Motor Computer and
Buildings vehicles equipment  equipment Total
(b) 31 December 2014 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000
Cost
At 1 January 2014 510,000 25,701 141,864 155,049 832,614
Revaluation surplus 25,404 - - - 25,404
Additions 36,456 29,605 4727 16,474 BV, 262
Disposals - (10,528) {59) (2,228) (13,213)
At 31 December 2014 571,860 44,378 146,532 169,297 932,067
Depreciation
At 1 January 2014 - 15,019 130,814 115,759 261,692
Charge for the year 13,661 9,663 4 700 6,935 34,959
Eliminated on revaluation (13,661) - - - (13,661)
Eliminated on disposal - {10,492} {49) (1,335) {11,876)
At 31 December 2014 - 14,190 135,565 121,359 271,114
Net book value
At 31 December 2014 571,860 30,188 10,967 47,938 660,953
14. Intangible assets {Group and Company)

Long term Short term Long term Short term

assurance insurance Total assurance Insurance Totd

business business 2015 business business 201
Cost KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'00
At 1 January 13,805 8,079 21,984 12,718 B.079 20,07
Additions 2,612 - 2612 1,187 - 1,57
At 31 December 16,517 8,079 24,596 13,905 8,079 21,94
Amortisation
At 1 Januar:.r 10.041 5_.564 15,50’5 8.385 5,914 T4,Eg
Charga for the year 1,942 454 2,396 1,656 850 2,26
At 31 December 11,983 7,018 19,001 10,041 6,564 16,65
Met book value
At 31 December 4,534 1,061 5,595 3,864 1,515 5,39

Intangible assets relate to the cost of purchase and installation of computer software (PREMIA). Asat
31 December 2015, these intangible assets were tested for impairment, and management has determinedno
impairment provision is required in respect of these intangibles.
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15.

Prepaid operating lease rentals

(a) Group

Cost

At 1 January
Additions

Transfers
Reclassification

At 31 December
Amortisation

At 1 January

Charge for the year
Eliminated on transfer
Reclassification

At 31 December

Net book value
At 31 December

(b) Company

Cost

At 1 January
Additions
Transfers

At 31 December

At 1 January
Eliminated on transfers
Charge for the year

At 31 December

Net book value
At 31 December

16. Investment properties

(a) Group

At start of year
Additions
Transfers

Fair value gains
At end of year

Long term Short term Long term Short term
assurance insurance Total assurance insurance Total
business business 2015 business business 2014
KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000
23,081 27,189 50,270 23,081 24,387 47 468
1,225,000 - 1,225,000 - 2,802 2,820
- (17,735) {(17.735) - - -
350 (140) 210 - - -
1,248,431 9,314 1,257,745 23,081 27,189 50,270
8,253 10,201 19,454 B812 9,804 18,816
3B, 722 410 39,132 441 97 338
- (8.072) (8,072) - - -
350 {141) 209 - - -
48,325 2,398 50,723 9,253 10,201 19,454
1,200,106 6,816 1,207,022 13,828 16,988 30,316
Long term Short term Long term Short term
assurance insurance Total assurance Insurance Total
business business 2015 business business 201
KShs"000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'0
23,081 26,903 49,984 23,081 24,101 47 E2
1,225,000 - 1,225,000 - - -
- (17,735) {17,735) - 2,802 2402
1,248,081 9168 1,257,249 23,081 26,903 49,484
9,253 10,051 19,304 8,812 9,655 18«68
- {8,072) (8,072) - - -
38,722 408 39,130 441 395 3B
47,975 2,387 50,362 9,253 10,051 19,04
1,200,106 6,781 1,206,887 13,828 16,852 30,680
Long term Short term Long term Short term
assurance insurance Total assurance insurance Totil
business business 2015 business business 201
KShs’000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'00
1,100,533 1,322,440 2,422 973 953,711 1,228,660 218221
146,512 230 146,742 6,486 15,340 21,85
- {385,000  (385,000) - - -
aro, 718 2, 758 463,473 140,336 78.540 218, £
1,617,760 1,030,428 2,648,188 1,100,533 1,322,440 2,422,973
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16.

17.

Investment properties (continued)

{b) Company
Long term Short term Long term Short term
assurance insurance Total assurance Iinsurance Total
business business 2015 business business 2014
KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000
At start of year 1,100,533 1,314 880 2415413 953,711 1,221,000 2,174,211
Additions 146,512 230 146,742 6,485 15,340 21,826
Transfers - (3850007 {385,000 % - =
Fair value gains 370,715 92 758 463,473 140,336 78,540 218,876
At end of year 1,617,760 1,022,868 2,640,628 1,100,533 1,314,880 2415413

Investment properties are stated at fair value, which has been determined based on valuation {open market value
for existing use) performed by City Valuers Limited as at 31 December 2015. City Valuers Limited are industry
specialists in valuing these types of investment properties. The fair value is supported by market evidence and
represents the amount at which the assets could be exchanged between a knowledgeable, willing buyer and a
knowledgeable, willing seller in an am's length transaction at the date of valuation in accordance with the
standards issued by the International Valuation Standerds Commiltee. In estimating the fair value of the properties,
the highest and best use of the properties is their current use. Valuations are performed on an annual basis using
recent fransaction prices for similar use assets and the fair value gains and losses are dealt with in the statement of

profit or loss.

The Group enters into operating leases for all its investment properties. The rental income arising during the yea
amounted to KShs 113,238,000 (2014: KShs 113,412,000}, which is included in investment income - (see note 3).

Direct operating expenses (included in note 3) attributable to the rental of these properties during the year were
KShs 81,076,000 {2014: KShs 76,807,000,

Disclosures regarding minimum lease payments have been provided in Note 38(b).

The following table shows an analysis of investment properties recorded at fair value by level of the fair
value hierarchy

Group 2015 2014
Level 1 - a7
Level 2 2,648,188 2,422 973
Level 3 = %
Fair value as at 31 December 2,648,188 2,422,973
Company

Level 1 - =
Level 2 2,640,628 2,415,413
Level 3 . “
Fair value as at 31 December 2,640,628 2,415,413

Investment in subsidiaries (Company)

Percentage (%)
of shareholding 2015 2014
KShs'000 KShs'000
At cost :
Kenya Pravack Limited 100 3.640 3,640
Kenindia Asset Management Company Limited 100 10,000 10,000
Tanzindia Assurance Company Limited 65 68,265 68,265
At 31 December 81,905 81,905

Investment in subsidiaries is stated at cost.
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17.

Investment in subsidiaries {Company) [continued)

Kenya Pravack Limited
The principal activity of Kenya Pravack Limited is to carry out investments for Kenindia Assurance Company

Limited. All subsidiary undertakings are included in the consolidation. The proportion of the voting rights in the
subsidiary undertakings held directly by the parent company do net differ from the proportion of ordinary shares
held.

Kenindia Asset Management Company Limited

The principle activity of Kenindia Asset Management Company Limited is that the company manages and
administers retirement benefit schemes, All subsidiary undertakings are inciuded in the consolidation. The
proportion of the voting rights in the subsidiary undertakings held directly by the parent company do not differ
from the proportion of ordinary shares held.

Tanzindia Assurance Company limited

The principal activity of Tanzindia Assurance Company Limited is the transaction of general insurance business.
All subsidiary undertakings are included in the consolidation. The proportion of the voting rights in the subsidiary
undertakings held directly by the parent company do not differ from the proportion of ordinary shares held.

The total non-controlling interest for the period is KShs 65,331,000 (2014: KShs 54,172,000) which is wholly
attributed to Tanzindia Assurance Company Limited.

Set out below are the summarised financial information for the subsidiary whose non-conirolling interest are
material to the group,

Summarised statement of financial position 2015 2014
KShs'000 KShs'000

Total assets 1,792,178 1,693,374
Total liabilities (1,808,630) (1,526,122)
Met assets 182,548 167,252

Summarised statement of profit or loss

Gross earned premiums 731,452 776,369
Underwriting loss {10,617) {5,607)
Profit before income tax 50,591 22151
Income tax expensafincome {18,709) {3,807)
Other comprehensive incoma - -
Total comprehensive income 31,882 18,344
Total comprehensive income allocated to non-controlling interest 11,159 4,015
Summarised statement of cash flows 2015 2014

KShs'000 KShs'000
Met cash generated from operating activities 36,104 {5,526)
MNet cash generated from investing activities {63,904) 45
Net cash generated from financing activities 155 16,953
Met increase in cash and cash equivalents (27,645) 11,472
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 54,238 27,727
Exchange gains/(losses) on cash and cash equivalents 48 827 15,039
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 75,420 54,238
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18.  available-for-sale equity investments
(a} Group
Long term Short term Long term Short term
assurance insurance Total assurance Iinsurance Total
business business 2015 business business 2014
KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000
At start of year 675 175,451 176,126 BTS 175,790 176,465
Exchange loss = (4,980) (4,880) - (3,969) (3,968)
Additions - 4,715 4715 - 3,630 3,630
At end of year 875 175,186 175,861 675 175,451 176,125
(b) Company
Long term Short term Long term Shert term
assurance insurance Total assurance insurance Total
business business 2015 business business 2014
KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000
At start of year 675 122,779 123,454 675 119,149 119,824
Additions ES - - - 3,630 363
675 122,779 123,454 675 122,779 123,45

At end of year

Available-for-sale equity investments comprise investments in shares of unguoted companies, and are carried at cod,
since their fair value cannot be reliably estimated. There is no market for these investments and the Group intends o

hoid them for the long term.

19. Financial assets at fair value through prefit and loss
(a) Group

Long term Short term Long term Short term
assurance insurance Total assurance insurance Tota
business business 2015 business  business 201
KShs'000 KShs000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'00(
At start of year 177,878 94 223 272101 84 B35 74,164 158, 79¢
Additions 55,180 g 55,180 87,671 12,472 100,142
Exchange gain/{losses) 2 {290} (280) - 263 261
Disposals (875} (487) (1,482)  (10.626) - {10,626
Fair value lossesi{gains) (38,475) (10,254) {48.729) 16,198 7.324 23,52
193,608 82,772 276,380 177,878 94,223 272,10

At end of year
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19. Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss (continued)

At end of year

(b) Company
Long term Short term Long term Short term
assurance insurance Total assurance insurance Total
business business 2015 business business 2014
KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000
At start of year 177,878 84,528 262,406 84,635 66,474 151,109
Additions 55,180 - 55,180 87,671 12,472 100,143
Disposals (975) (487) {1.462)  (10,626) - {10,626)
Fair value losses/{gains) (38,475) (12,038) 150,513) 16,198 5,582 21,780
At end of year 193,608 72,003 265,611 177,878 84,528 262,406
20. Loans and receivables {Group and Company)
Long term Short term Long term Short term
assurance insurance Total assurance insurance Total
business business 2015 business business 2014
Mortgage loans KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'0(0
At start of year 4813 - 4 B13 4813 - 4813
Loan repayments - - - - - -
At end of year 4,813 - 4,313 4,813 - 4813
Maturity profile of mortgage
Loans maturing
At start of year 3,546 - 3,546 3.546 - 3,586
Loan repayments 1,267 = 1,267 1,267 - 1,267
At end of year 4,813 - 4,813 4,813 - 4,81
Policy loans
At start of year 80,413 80,413 72,787 - 72,707
Loan advanced 31,135 - 31,135 27,435 - 27,45
Loan repayments (20,538} - [20,538) (19,800) - (19,801
At end of year 91,010 - 91,010 80,413 - 80,43
Motor vehicle loans
{Maturing between 1-5 years)
At start of year 153 1,189 1,322 153 1,392 1,54
Loan advancad - - - - 1,500 1,50
Loan repayments - (489) {489) - (1,723) {1,72)
153 680 833 153 1,169 1,32
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20. Loans and receivables {Group and Company) {continued)

21.

Long term Short term Long term Short term
assurance insurance Total assurance insurance Total
business  business 2015 business business 2014

Maturity profile of policy loans KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000
Loans Maturing
Wiithin 1 year 7757 - 7,787 11,237 - 11,237
In 1-5 years 44 240 B 44 240 46,762 - 46,762
In over 5 years 39,013 - 39,013 22,414 - 22,414
At end of year 21,010 . 91,010 80,413 - 80,413
Book amount
Mortgage loans 43813 - 4813 4,813 - 4 813
Policy loans 91,010 3 91,010 80,413 - 80,413
Motor vehicles 153 680 833 153 1,168 1,322
At end of year 95,976 680 96,656 85,379 1,169 86,548

Mortgage loans, policy loans and staff motor vehicle loans are carried at amortised cost. The weighted average
effective interest rates for these loans are disciosed in Note 5. There is no concentration of credit risk in respect of

these loans.
Collateral

The group holds collateral against loans to loanees (staff and non-staff) in the form of mortgage interests over property
and motor vehicle. Estimates of fair value are based on the value of collateral assessed at the time of borrowing, and
generally are not updated except when a loan is individually assessed as impaired. The Group can liquidate the
collateral in case of default. The Group holds in its custody the title deeds and log books for the assets attributable to
the mortgage loans and moator vehicle loans respectively on behalf of the loanees. The title documents are released to
the loanees upon full settlement of the respective loans. The collateral far the pelicy loans is the cash surrender value
of the underlying policy. In the opinion of the directors, the coliateral in place is adequate to cover the debt amount. In
case of default, the policy loan is written off against the cash surrender value. Mone of these loans have had their
terms renegotiated.

Receivables arising out of reinsurance arrangements

Long term Short term Long term Short term

assurance insurance Total assurance insurance Total

business  business 2015 business business 2014

Group KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs’000 KShs'000 KShs'000
Amount due from re-insurers 32,593 1,338,218 1,371,511 B.179 1,112,874 1,149.15]
Company
Amount due from re-insurers 32,593 936,954 089,547 36,178 876,328 912,507

Receivables arising out of reinsurance arrangements are non-interest bearing. Those past due and non-interest bearing
are not considered impaired as these relate to active accounts and recovery is still being pursued by management. For
an analysis of the past due not impaired receivables arising from reinsurance arrangements, refer to Mote 41 (Credit

Risk).
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22,

23.

Receivables arising out of direct insurance arrangements (QOutstanding premium)

Outstanding premium
Allowance for credit losses

At 31 December

Allowance for credit losses
Al the beginning of the year
Charge for the year
Exchange difference

Bad debts written off

At 31 December

Aged analysis of outstanding premium

Meither past due nor impaired
Less than 30 days

31 — 60 days

61— 90 days

Past due but not impaired

91 — 120 days

Cwer 120 days

At 31 December

Group Company
2015 2014 2015 2014
KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000
1,020,376 970,574 763,266 743 566
(276,331) {252,500} (272,221) (248,203)
744,045 718,074 491,145 495,363
252,500 202,218 248203 199,362
26,796 50,282 24,018 48841
(1,562) - - -
(1,403) - - -
276,331 252,500 272,221 248,203
7,889 190,564 (36,673) 1890564
196,062 60,431 91,500 60431
153,922 71,086 59,360 71086
112,368 109,260 43,894 33430
286,733 333,064 139792

339,582

744,045 718,074 491,145 495363

Receivables arising out of direct insurance arrangements are non-interest bearing and are generally on cash and cerry
terms (reguire immediate settlement). Amounts that are past due are not considered impaired as these relate to atfve
accounts and recovery is still being pursued by management. The impairment was written off to expenses in he

respective periods.

Insurance liabilities

Insurance liabilities comprise gross claims reported, claims handiing expense liabilities and the liability for ckins
incurred but not reported and are stated net of expected recoveries from salvage and subrogation. The expered
recoveries at the end of 2015 and 2014 are insignificant.

Group Company
iy Outstanding balances 2015 2014 2015 214
KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'00
Short term / (non-life) insurance contracts
Claims reported and claims handling expenses 4,916,607 5,553,121 4,333,993 5B97.€9
Salvage recoverable - - 825728 885,22
Claims incurred but not reported Q42 251 1.016,452 - -
5,858,858 7,569,573 5,159,721  6,782,¢1
Reinsurers’ share of insurance liabilities {4,017,859) {5,762,780) (3,525,788) (5,129,&7)
Net outstanding liabilities 1,840,999 1,806,793 1,633,933 1,652,
Long term assurance contracts
Claims reported and claims handling expenses 41,489 36,676 41,489 36,076
Total gross insurance liabilities 5,900,347 7,606,249 5,201,210 6,819.%€7
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23.

Insurance liabilities {continued)
Outstanding claims provisions movement
Long term assurance business (Group and Company)
2015 2014
Insurance Insurance
contract contract
liabilities liabilities
K.Shs'000 KShs'000
At 1 January 36,676 33,543
Ciaims incurred in current year 363,541 228,404
Claims paid {358,728) (325,271)
At 31 December 41,489 36,676
Short term insurance business
(a)} Group
Re- Re-
insurers' insurers’
Insurance share/Reins Insurance share/Rein
contract urance of Total contract surance of Total
liabilities liabilities 2015 liabilities  liabilities 2014
KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs’000 KShs’000 KShs'000 KShs'000
At 1 January 7,568,573 5,762,780 1,806,793 8727132 7356037 137,095
Claims incurred in current accident year 1,842,615 668,443 1274172 1,413,079 (508,818) 1,621,895
Other movements in claims incurred in prior - = < - - -
accident years
Claims paid during the year (3,653,330) (2.413.364) (1,230,966) (2,270,638) (1,084.441) (1,186 a7
At end of year 5,858,858 4,017,859 1,840,999 7,569,573 5,762,780 1,806,793
(b) Company
Re- Re-
insurers’ insurers’
Insurance sharefReins Insurance share/Rein
contract urance of Total contract surance of Total
liabilities liabilities 2015 liabilities  liabilities 2014
KShs'000 KShs'D00 KShs'000 KShs’'000 KShs'000 KSk'O00
At 1 January 6,782,791 5,129,857 1,652,934 7791515 6,531,804 1285611
Claims incurred in current accident year 1,658,661 517,302 1,141,358 572,189  (B79,316) 1.4% 505
Other movements in claims incurred - = & - - -
in prior accident years
Claims paid during the year (3,281,731)  (2,121,371) {1,160,360) (1,580,913) {522,731) (1,05:182)
At end of year 5,159,721 3,525,788 1,633,933 6,782,791 5.1 29,857 1,612,934
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24. Other receivables

(a) Group
Long term Short term Long term Short term
assurance insurance Total assurance insurance Total
business business 2015 business business 2014
KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000
Prepayments 268 3,114 3,382 - 3,436 3,436
Interdepartmental balance i 884,001 894,001
Deposits, outstanding rental 21,045 396,605 417650 59,242 377,095 436,337
income and others
At end of year 21,313 1,293,720 1,315,033 59,242 380,531 439,773
{a} Company
Amount due from related companies - 43,039 43,039 - 39,038 39,058
Interdepartmental balances - 884,001 884,001 - - -
Prepa?ments 268 1, 108 1376 = 1,109 1,109
Deposits, outstanding rental
income and others 21,045 351,593 372638 59,242 335,049 385.2N
21,313 1,289,741 1,211,054 59,242 376,196 435438

{b)

At end of year

Other receivables category is made up of amounts due from related companies, inter-departmental balance, pre-
payments, depesits, outstanding rental income and miscellaneous receivables. For terms and conditions relating to
related party receivables refer to note 38. Other receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 30-30

days ferms.

Kenya Motor Insurance Pool (Group and company)

The amount due from Kenya Metar Insurance Pool relates to the Group’s share of net assets in a motor insurarce
pool where underwritersfinsurance companies in Kenya were required to cede a portion of their premiums to a pec|
in order to cushion themselves from excessive claims arising from public vehicles incidences. The Kenya Moor
Insurance Pool is able to settle claims as and when they fall due. In the opinion of the directors, the amount due from
Kenya Motor Insurance Pool is recoverable,

At 1 January

Net {decrease)fincrease in group share of net assets of the pool

At end of year

Summarised financial information in respect of the Kenya Motor Pool is as follows;

Total assets new pool
Total liabilities new pool

Total net assets
Group's share of the net assets

iLoss)/surplius for the year new pool

Group's share of the (loss)/profit for the year

Group's share of other comprehensive

income
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2015 2014
KShs'000 KShs’(00
86,857 78,49
(656) 8,%8
86,201 86,657
2015 2014
KShs'000 KShs't00
889,020 887 44
(88,336) (75,005)
800,584 812,08
86,201 86,57
(6.542) 88363
(656) 8,33



KENINDIA ASSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

25, Government securifies

{a) Group

Long term Shortterm Short term Long term Short term
assurance insurance insurance Total assurance insurance Total
Treasury bills and bonds business business business 2015 business business 2014
movement KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 HKShs'000 KShs'000
Held toAvailable for Held to Held totvailable for
maturity sale maturity maturity sale
At start of year 16,336,729 916,376 - 17,253,105 13,928,539 875,890 14,804,529
Additions 4,347,992 127,268 245537 4,720,797 3,327,699 - 3327699
Maturity of bonds (1,177.,892) {95,200) - (1,272,892 (958,800} - (858,800)
Reclassification - (51,449) 51,449 = - - -
Fair value adjustment recorded - {51.768) - (51,768) - 31,870 31,870
in other comprehensive income
Accrued interest 75,100 1,639 351 77.080 39,29 8,518 47,807
At end of year 19,582,129 846,866 297,337 20,726,332 16,336,729 916,376 17,253,105
Treasury bills and bonds
maturing
AWithin 1 year 712,740 91,314 51,449 855,503 868,980 109,867 978,847
-In 1-5 years 3,653,614 224 036 - 3877650 1,826,056 182,338 008,395
-After 5 years 15,215,775 531,516 245,888 150993179 13,641,693 624,170 14,265,863
At end of year 19,582,129 B46,866 297,337 20,726,332 16,336,729 916,376 17,253,105
{b) Company
Long term Shortterm Short term Long term Short term
assurance insurance insurance Total assurance insurance Total
Treasury bills and bonds business business  business 2015 business  business 2014
movement KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000
Held of Held to  Available for Held of Awvailable for
maturity maturity sale maturity sale
At start of year 16,336,729 - B51,492 17,188,221 13.928,539 819,921 11,7 48,460
Additions 4,347,992 245,537 127.268 4,720,797 3,327,699 - 1327699
Maturity of bonds (1,177,692) - {95,200) (1,272,892) (958,800) - '2358,800)
Fair value adjustment recorded - - (50,724) (50,724} - 31,298 31,298
in other comprehensive income
Income tax effect - - - - # - 2
Accrued interest 75,100 351 1,258 76,708 38,281 273 39,564
At end of year 19,582,129 245,888 834,094 20,662,111 16,336,729 851,492 1,1 88,221
Treasury bills and bonds
maturing
-Within 1 year 712,740 = 78,542 791,282 868,930 58,7894 927,774
-In 1-5 years 3,653,614 - 224035 3877650 1,826,056 177,908 2, 003,964
-After 5 years 15,215,778 245 888 531,516 15,993,179 13,641,693 614,790 4 256,483
At end of year 19,582,129 245,888 834,094 20,662,111 16,336,729 851,492 1,1 88,221
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25. Government securities {continued)

26.

27.

Held to maturity government securities are in long term business and short term business and are carried at amortised
costs {i.e. cost plus accrued discount or interest) and any premium or discount is amortised through profit or loss
during the tenancy of the bond or securities. Available-for-sale govemment securities are in short term business, and
are carried at fair value. Gains and losses on valuation of fair value on available-for-sale investments are dealt with in
the statement of other comprehensive income.

Amounts payable under deposit administration contracts {Group and company)
Movements in amounts payable under deposit administration contracts during the year were as shown below. The

lighilities are shown inclusive of interest accumulated to 31 December. Interest was declared and credited to the
customer accounts at a weighted average rate of 15% for the year (2014 15.25%).

2015 2014

KShs'000 KShs'000

At start of the year 13,963,555 12,069,111
Pension fund deposits received 2,238,815 1,794,285
Withdrawals and benefits paid (1,268,350) (1,513,961)
Comrissions and expenses charged (111,669) (82,172)
Investment income 2,168,075 1,696,292
At end of year 16,990,526 13,963,555

Actuarial value of policy holders’ liabilities {Group and Company)

The company underwrites long term policies under its long term assurance business, This type of business is
subjected to an actuarial method where liabilities are determined by the company on the advice of the consulting
actuary and actuarial valuations are carried out on an annual basis. The annual actuarial valuation of the life fund
was carried out by the company's consulting Actuary, Saket Singhal, as at 31 December 2015 and 31 December
2014 respectively, using the net premium method and revealed an actuarial surplus of KShs 876 million {2014:
KShs 488 million) after reserves set aside and before declaration of interest and bonuses to policy holders and
distribution to shareholders. The actuary recommended KShs 60 million (2014: KShs 60 million) transfer from the
life fund to the shareholders.

2015 2014
Assets and liabilities of the life fund KShs"000 KShs’000
Actuarial value of policy holders' liabilities 4.953 607 4,182,877
Life fund assets 4,953,607 4,182,877

Policy holders' liabilities are stated inclusive of cumulative provisions for interest and bonuses payable as al
31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014 respectively.

Movement is as follows: 2015 2014

KShs KShs
At start of year 4182877 3,652,2%
Policyholders’ bonuses and interest 527,100 383,710
Surrenders and annuity payments (45,450) {18,153
Increase in the period (net) 289,080 165,001
At end of the year 4,953,607 418287
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27.

Actuarial value of policy holders’ liabilities {(Group and Company) (continued)
Actuarial assumptions:

The significant valuation assumptions for the actuarial valuation as at 31 December 2015 are summarised below. The
same assumptions were used in 2014,

Material judgement is required in determining the liabilities and in the chaice of assumptions. Assumptions in use are
based on past experience, current internal data, external market indices and benchmarks which reflect current
observable market prices and other published information. Assumptions and prudent estimates are determined at the
date of valuation and no credit is taken for possible beneficial effects of voluntary withdrawals. Assumptions are
further evaluated on a continuous basis in order to ensure realistic and reasonable valuations.

Movtalify rates

Assumptions are based on standard industry and national tables, according to the type of contract written. They refiect
recent historical experience and are adjusted when appropriate to reflect the Group’s own experiences. An
appropriate, but not excessive, prudent allowance is made for expected future improvements. Assumptions are
differentiated by sex, underwriting class and contract type.

An increase in rates will lead to a larger number of claims {and claims could occur sooner than anticipated), which will
increase the expenditure and reduce profits for the shareholders. The rates of mortality used in calculating the liaoility
under a policy are the rates assumed in accordance with the tables published for the Institute of Actuaries in England
and the Faculty of Actuaries of Scotiand. The company uses the KE 2001-2003 mortality table as a base table for
standard mortality rates. The rate of interest used was 4% per annum compound for all long term assurance polizes.
For valuing annuities, the KE 2001-2003 mortality table for annuities is used with interest at 6.5% per annum.
Statistical methods are used to adjust the morality rates reflected on the base table based on the compary’s
experience of improvement or worsening of the mortality. There are reserves established to take account of the
possible deterioration of mortality experience in respect of HIVIAIDS related deaths.

Longewity

Assumptions are based on standard industry and national tables, adjusted when appropriate to reflect the Group®s
own risk experience. An appropriate but not excessive prudent allowance is made for expected future improvements.
Assumptions are differentiated by sex, underwriting class and contract type.

An increase in longevity rates will lead to an increase in the number of annuity payments made, which will increase
the expenditure and reduce profits for the shareholders.

Investment refum

The weighted average rate of return is derived based on a model portfolio that is assumed to back liabillies,
consistent with the long-term asset allocation strategy. These estimates are based on current market returns aswell
as expectations about future economic and financial developments.

An increase in investment return would lead to a reduction in expenditure and an increase in profits for he
shareholders.

Expenses

Operating expenses assumptions reflect the projected costs of maintaining and servicing in-force pelicies end
associated overhead expenses. The current level of expenses is taken as an appropriate expense base, adjusted for
expected expense inflation if appropriate.

An increase in the level of expenses would result in an increase in expenditure thereby reducing profits for hee
shareheclders.
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27,

Actuarial value of policy holders' liabilities {Group and Company) {continued)

Actuarial assumptions (continued)

Lapse and surrender rales

Lapses relate to the termination of policies due to non—payment of premiums. Surrenders relate to the voluntary
termination of policies by policyholders. Policy termination assumptions are determined using statistical measures
based on the Group's experience and vary by product type, policy duration and sales trends.

An increase in lapse rates eary in the life of the policy would tend to reduce profits for shareholders, but later
increases are broadly neutral in effect.

Discount rate

Life insurance liabilities are determined as the sum of the discounted value of the expected benefits and future
administration expenses directly related to the contract, less the discounted value of the expected theoretical
premiums that would be required to meet these future cash outflows. Discount rates are based on current industry risk
rates, adjusted for the Group's own risk exposure.

A decrease in the discount rate will increase the value of the insurance liability and therefore reduce profits fer the
shareholders.

Sensitivity analysis on actuarial assumptions

The basis of valuation of life insurance contracts is prescribed in the Insurance Act of Kenya 1984. The Act prestribes
Net Premium Valuation method which is very conservative. Changes in actuarial basis derived from recent experence
investigations do not have a significant impact in the actuarially derived reserves. The actuarial method used & not
sensitive to changes in the key assumptions used in determining the actuarial liabilities. The key actiarial
assumptions will need to change very significantly for the actuarial liabilities to change by a relatively small
percentage.

Changes in mortality assumptions will have the following impact in the statement of profit or loss,

% change Insurance  Assets backing  Insurance  Assets backing
Sensitivities inbase  participating life shareholders participating  life shareholders
2015 2015 2014 2014
KShs'000 KShs'"0D00 KShs"000 KShs'000

Discount rate on:
Assurance mortality +1% {80,100) - (75,970) -
Assurance martality -1% 86,490 - 82,430 -

T2



KENINDIA ASSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMEBER 2015

28.  Provision for unearned premium

(a) Group 2015 2014
Re- Re-
Gross insurance Net Gross insurance Net

KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000

At beginning of year 1,381,350 597,372 783,976 1,389,927 526,010 853,917
Increasel(decrease) in the year 62,331 2536 59,795 (8,577} 71,362 (79,939)
At end of year 1,443,681 599,908 843,773 1,381,350 597,372 783,978

{b} Company

At beginning of year 977,183 349,674 627,509 1,034,726 331,605 703,121
Increasef{decrease) in the year 20,246 23,268 66,978 157.543) 18,069 [75,612)
At end of year 1,067,429 372,942 694,487 977,183 349,674 627,509

Unearned premiums represent the proportion of the premiums written in periods up to the accounting date that
relates to the unexpired terms of policies in force at the reporting date, and is computed using the 1/24" method.

Provision for unearned premium is classified as current liability.

Provision for unexpired risks: Unexpired risks provision relates to insurance contracts for which the company expects
to pay claims in excess of the related unearned premium provision. The provision for unexpired risks was KShs Nil
{2014; KShs Nil).

The movement in the unearned premium is as follows:

{a) Group 2015 2014
Gross Net Gross MNet
unearned Re- unearned unearned Re- unearned
premium  insurance premium premium  insurance  premium

KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000

At beginning of year 1,381,350 597 372 783,978 1,389,927 526,010 863,917
Premium written during the
year 3,562 588 1,555,627 2,006,961 3,471,288 1,628,057 1,843,231

Premium earned during
the year (note 2a and 2b) (3,500,257) (1,553,001) (1,947,166)  (3.479,865) (1,556,685) (1,923,17()

At end of year 1,443,681 599,908 843,773 1,381,350 597,372 783,973
() Company

At beginning of year 977,183 349,674 627,509 1,034,726 331,605 703,121

Premium written during the

year 3,570,111 1,579,963 1,960,148 2,645,953 1,093,833 155212

Premium earned during
the year (note 2a and 20) (3,479,865) (1,556,695) (1923,170)  (2,703.496) {1,075,764) (1,627,730

At end of year 1,067,429 372,942 694,487 977,183 349,674 627,50
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29, Deferred tax

Deferred tax is calculated, in full, on all temporary differences under the liability method using a principal tax rate of 30%
(2014:30%). The deferred tax assets and liabilities are made up of the foliowing:

Deferred tax asset 2015 2014
Long term Long term
assurance Short term assurance Shortterm
business insurance Total business insurance Total
(a) Group KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000
Accelerated capital allowances - [2,630) {2,630) - (2,700) (2,700)
Temporary differences arising
from accrued leave - 7,234 7,234 - 7167 7167
Other temporary differences - (1,572) {1,572) - ® S
Tax losses carried forward - 101,216 101,216 - 114,018 114,018
At end of year - 104,248 104,248 - 118,485 118,485
(b) Company
Accelerated capital allowances - {2,630) [2,630) - {2,872) (2,872)
Temporary differences arising
from accrued leave - 7,200 7,200 - 7,080 7.08)
Other temporary differences - (1,259) [1.259) = = -
Tax losses carried forward - 100,844 100,844 - 113,670 113,671
At end of year - 104,155 104,155 - 117,878 117,871

Deferred tax liability

(a) Group
Actuarial surplus (4,104) - (4,104) (24,648) - {24 648
Accelerated capital allowances - {B73) (873) - (282) (282
Other temporary differences - (5,759) {5,759) % (849) (849
Deferred tax on fixed assets
revaluation - {81,251) (81,251) - (64,141) (64,141
At end of year {4,104) (87,883) {91,987) (24,648) {65,272) {89,920
(b) Company
Actuarial surplus {4,104) - (4,104) (24,648} - {24,648
Deferred tax on fixed assets
revaluation - (81,251) {81,251) - (64,141) (64,141
At end of year {4,104) (81,251) {85,355) (24,648) (64,141) (68,789

The Group offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets ad
current tax liabilities which the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the sane

tax authority.
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30. Insurance payables

(a) Group
At 1 January
Avrising during the year
Utilised/paid
At end of year
(b) Company
At 1 January
Avrising during the year

Utilised /paid

At end of year

2015 2014

Amounts Amounts Amounts Amounts
payables on payable from payables on payable
direct insurance reinsurance direct from
business KShs'000 insurance reinsurance
KShs’000 KShs'000 KShs"000
272,423 1,537, 727 178,108 1,719,791

- 569,459 04,315
{42,298) (182,064)
230,125 2,107,179 272,423 1,537,727
272,423 1,240,644 178,108 1,407 885
- 401 167 04,315 -
(42,298) . " (167,241)
230,125 1,641,811 272,423 1,240,644

Insurance payables comprise of amounts payable on direct insurance business (to agents and brokers) and
amounts payable from reinsurance (payable to the reinsurers)

31. Other payables

{a) Group

Inter- departmental balance
Accrued expenses
Other liabilities

At end of year

{b) Company
Accrued expenses
Inter-departmental balance
Other lizbilities

At end of year

2015 2014
Long term Short term Long term Short term
assurance insurance assurance insurance
business business Total business business Total
KShs'000 KShs'000 KShe'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000
894,001 - 894,001 - - -
B.015 50,503 5B.518 - 44 228 44 228
106,875 2,184,691 2 291566 217,574 414,542 632,116
1,008,891 2,235,194 3,244,085 217,574 458,770 676,344
8,015 49 216 57,231 - 42 469 42 469
894,001 - 894,001 - - -
106,875 2,128,772 2,235,647 217,574 367,710 585 284
1,008,891 2,177,988 3,186,879 217,574 410,179 627,753

For terms and conditions relating to related party payables, refer to Note 38.

Other payables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 30-80 day

amaortised cost,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ([continued)
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32. Cash and cash equivalents

2015 2014
Long term Short term Long term Short term
assurance insurance assurance insurance
business business Total business business Total
(a) Group KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs’000 KShs'000 KShs'000
Bank and cash balances 165,282 136,945 02,227 31,326 112,776 144,102
Deposits with financial institutions
maturing within 90 days of the date of
acquisition{call deposits and fixed
deposits) 388,169 2,2B9.479 2,677 548 712.626- 511,450 1,224,076
Commercial paper maturing within 90
days of the date of acquisition 103,425 - 103,425 = - -
At end of year 656,876 2,426,424 3,083,300 743,952 624,226 1,368,178
{b) Company
Bank and cash balances 165,282 57,259 222 541 31,326 55,865 87,191
Deposits with financial institutions
maturing within 80 days of the date of
acquisitionjcall deposits and fixed
deposits) 388,160 2282522 2,670,691 712,626 506,246 1,218,872
Commercial paper maturing within 20
days of the date of acquisition 103,425 - 103,425 = - =
At end of year 656,876 2,339,781 2,996,657 743,952 562,111 1,306,063

Cash and cash equivalents (continued)

Short-term deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and three months depending on the immediate
cash reguirements of the Group. All bank balances are subject to an average variable interest rate of 0.5% (2014:

1.77%).

The carrying amounts disclosed above reasonably approximate fair value at the reporting date. There are no restrictions
or coflateral held en cash and equivalents
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KENINDIA ASSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

Financial instruments
Summary per category

(i} Group

The Group's financial instruments are summarised by categories as follows:

. Financial
Held-to Loans ar!l:l other Available- "
, receivables, for-sale -
maturity . . Fair value
X F cash and cash financial
financial . through
Jaey equivalents assets profit and
{Note 25) {hote20,24,3%) (Note 28) \ote19,33) Total
Financial assets KShs 000 KShs'000 KShs*'000 KShs'000 KShs'000
31 December 2015:
Investment in quoted ) i i 276,380 276,380
shares
Investment in government  4q 479 466 - 846,866 . 20,726,332
securities
Loans receivable - 96,656 - - 96,656
Other receivables - 1,316,370 - - 1,316,370
Deposits with financial
institutions:
-Maturing after 90 days of
the date of acquisition ) i i 2R wRE R
-Maturing within 90 days of
the date of acquisition 071018 ) 24871,048
- 2,677.648 - 717,074 3,304,722
Commercial paper ' - - - 103,425 103,425
Bank and cash balances - 302,206 - - 302,206
Carrying value 19,879,466 4,392,880 846,866 1,096,879 26,216,091
Fair value 19,879,466 4,392,880 846,866 1,096,879 26,216,091
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KENINDIA ASSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

33. Financial instruments (continued)

(a) Summary per category (continued)
{i} Group

(i)

The Group's financial instruments are summarised by categories as follows:

Loans and . Financial
Held-to other Av:: I:::\; assets at
maturity receivables, . Fair value
. financial
financial cash and cash P through
assets equivalents (Note 25) profit and
(Note 25)  {Mote20,24,32) {Note19,33) Total
Financial assets KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs‘'000
31 December 2014:
Investment in quoted shares - - - 27210 272,101
Investment in government securities 16,336,729 - 816,376 - 17,253,105
Loans receivable - 86,548 - - 86,548
Other receivables - 439,773 - - 438,773
Deposits with financial institutions:
-Ma!n_Jr!r.tg after 90 days of the date of i ) i §13.789 613.789
acquisition
-I'uﬂatl:lr!r-lg within 90 days of the date of i 1,224,076 i i 1,224,076
acquisition
- 1,224,076 - 613,789 1,837,858
Commercial paper - - - 103,734 103,734
Bank and cash balances - 144 102 - - 144,10z
Carrying value 16,336,729 1,894,499 916,376 989,624  19,909,45¢
Fair value 16,336,729 1,894,499 916,376 989,624  20,137,22¢
Group 2015 2014
Liabilities
Liabilities at at Liabilities
amortised Liabilities amortised at fair
cost at fair value Total cost value Total
Financial liabilities KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
{Mote 31) 3,244 085 - 3,244 085 676,344 - 676,344
Payable under deposit administration
liabilities (Mote 26) - 16,990,526 16,990,526 - 13,963,555 13,963,558
Carrying value 3,244,085 16,990,526 16,990,526 676,344 13,963,555 14,639,899
Fair value 3,244,085 16,990,526 20,234,611 676,344 13,963,555 14,639,899
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33. Financial instruments (continued)

{a} Summary per category {continued)

{ii} Company
The Company's financial instruments are summarised by categories as follows:
Loans and
Held-to- _other  , ailable- Financial assets
maturity tacalvaEias; for-sale at fair value
Financial assets . rt cash and . .
financial S financial through profit
assets equivalents assets and
(Note25) ((Note 20,24,32) (Note25) loss (Note19,33) Total
KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs‘000 KShs'000 KShs*000
31 December 2015:
Investrnent in quoted shares - - - 265,611 265,611
Investment in government securities 19,828,017 - 834,084 - 20862,111
Loans receivable - 95,656 - - 95,656
Other receivables - 1,312,391 - - 1,312,391
Deposits with financial institutions:
—MatLlJr!r?g after 90 days of the date of ) i i 507 537 507 537
acquisition
-Mstl:lr.trlrg within 90 days of the date of 2,670,691 } . 267,691
acquisition -
- 2,670,691 - 507,537 3,178,228
Commercial paper - - 103,425 103,425
Bank and cash balances - 222520 - - 222,520
Carrying value 19,828,017 4,302,258 834,094 876,573 25,840,942
Fair value 19,828,017 4,302,258 834,094 876,573 25,840,942
(i) Company 2015 2014
Liabilities
Liabilities at Liabilities at Liabilities
amortised at fair amortised at fair
cost value Total cost value Total
Financial liabilities KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KSks'000
Financial liabilities at amortised cost 3,186,879 - 3,186,879 627,753 - 627 753
(Mote 31)
Payable under deposit administration - 16,980,526 16,990,526 - 13,963,555 13,92 555
liabilities {Note 26}
Carrying value 3,186,879 16,990,526 20,177,405 627,753 13,963,555 14,591,308
Fair value 3,186,379 16,990,526 20,177,405 627,753 13,963,555 14,591,308
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33. Financial instruments |continued)

(b} Summary per category {continued)

{iiy Company
— Financial
Held-to- o:har Available- assets at
miaturity receivables for-sale fair value
Financial assets financial a ! financial through
cash and cash .
Assets equivalents assets profit and
(Mote25) (Note20,24,32) {Mote?5) loss
i {Note19,33) Total
KShs'000 KShs000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs 000
31 December 2014:
Investment in quoted shares - - - 262,406 262,408
L":;srti:i"ee:t in-govstnien 16,336,729 - 851,492 . 17.188,221
Loans receivable - B6,548 - - 85,648
Other receivables - 435 438 - - 435,438
Deposits with financial
institutions:
Maturing after 90 days of the _ ) i 431.154 431 154
date of acquisition ! '
-Maturing within 80 days of the
date of acquisition ) 2iare B e
- 1,218,872 - 431,154 1,650,026
Commercial paper - - 103,734 103,734
Bank and cash balances - BT, 191 - - 87,13
Carrying value 16,336,729 1,828,049 851,492 797,294 19,813,564
Fair value 16,336,729 1,828,049 851,492 797,294 19,813,564

(c)

Fair value of financial assets and liahilities not carried at fair value

The following describes the methodologies and assumptions used to detenmine fair values for those financial
instruments which are not already recorded at fair value in the financial statements {i.e., held to maturity and loans and
receivables).

Assets for which fair value approximales canrying value

For financial assets and financial liabilities that have a shori-term maturity {less than three months), it is assumed that the
camying amounts approximate to their fair value. This assumption is also applied to demand deposits, and savings
accounts without a specific maturity. For other variable rate instruments an adjustmert is also made to reflect the change
in required credit spread since the instrument was first recognised.

Fixed rate financial instruments

The fair value of fixed rate financial assets and liabilities camied at amortised cost are estimated by comparing marke
interest rates when they were first recognised with current market rates for similar financial instruments, The estimated fai
value of fixed interest bearing deposits is based on discounted cash flows using prevailing money-market interest rates fo
debis with similar credit risk and maturity. For quoted debt issued the fair values are determined based on quoted marke
prices. For those notes issued where quoted market prices are not available, a discounted cash flow madel is used base:
on a current interest rate yield curve appropriate for the remaining tenm to maturity and credit spreads.
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KENINDIA ASSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

33. Financial instruments {continued)
(d) Determination of fair value and fair value hierarchy

Below follows required disclosure of fair value measurements, using a three-level fair value hierarchy that
reflects the significance of the inputs used in determining the measurements. It should be noted that these
disclosure only cover instruments measured at fair value.

Level 1

Included in level 1 category are financial assets and liakilities that are measured in whole or in part by reference
to published quotes in an active market. A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if
quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing
service or regulatory agency and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on
an arm's length basis.

Level 2

Included in level 2 category are financial assets and liabilities measured using significant inputs other than
quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). For example, instruments measured using a valuation technique based on
assumptions that are supported by prices from observable current market transactions are categorised as level
2.

Financial assets and liabilities measured using a valuation technique based on assumptions that are supported
by prices from observable current market transactions are assets and liabilities for which pricing is obtained via
pricing services, but where prices have not been determined in an active market, financial assets with fair values
based on broker guotes, investments in private equity funds with fair values obtained via fund managers and
assets that are valued using the Group's own models whereby the majority of assumptions are market
observable.

Level 3

Financial assets and liabilities measured using significant inputs that are not based on observable market data
are categorised as level 3. Non market observable inputs means that fair values are determined in whole or in
part using a valuation technique (model) based on assumptions that are neither supported by prices from
observable current market transactions in the same instrument nor are they based on available market data.
The main asset classes in this category are unlisted equity investments and limited partnerships. Valuation
techniques are used to the extent that observable inputs are not available, thereby allowing for situations for
which there is litthe, if any, market activity for the asset or liability at the measuremant date. However, the fair
value measurement objective remains the same, that is, an exit price from the perspective of the Group.
Therefore, unobservable inputs reflect the Group's own assumpfions about the assumptions that market
participants would use in pricing the asset or Hability {including assumptions about risk). These inputs are
developed based on the best information available, which might include the Group's own data. However,
significant portion of the unquoted shares have been valued at cost and variation in inputs would not have
significant fair value change.
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33. Financial instruments (continued)
({d) Determination of fair value and fair value hierarchy (continued)

The following table shows an analysis of financial instruments recorded at fair value by level of the fair value

hierarchy:
Group Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total fair value
As at 31 December 2015 KShs‘000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000

Financial assets:

Financial assets held-for-trading
Investment in quoted shares 276,380 - - 276,280

Financial assets designated at fair
value through profit and loss

Deposits with financial institutions 3,394,722 - - 3,394,722

Commercial paper - 103,425 - 103,425

Bank and cash balances : 302,227 - a0z, 227
3,384,722 405,652 - 3,800,374

Available-for-sale financial assets

Investment in government securities 846,866 - - 846,866

Total financial assets 4,517,968 405,652 - 4,923,620

Financial liabilities:

Deposit administration contracts - 16,990,526 - 16,990,526

Group Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total fair value

As at 31 December 2014 KShs*000 KShs'000  KShs'000 KShs'000

Financial assets:

Financial assets held-for-trading

Investment in quoted shares 272,101 - - 272,101

Financial assets designated at fair

value through profit and loss

Deposits with financial institutions 1,837,865 - - 1,837 ,B65

Commercial paper 103,734 - 103,734

Bank and cash balances - 144,102 - 144 102
1,837,865 247 B36 - 2,085,701

Available-for-sale financial assets

Investment in government securilies 916,376 - - 916,376

Total financial assets 3,026,342 247,836 - 3,274,178

Financial liabilities:

Deposit administrafion contracts - 13,963,555 - 13,963,555
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33. Financial instruments {continued)

d) Determination of fair value and fair value hierarchy (continued)

Total fair
Company Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 value
As at 31 December 2015 KShs'000 KShs 000 KShs'000 KShs*‘000
Financial assets:
Financial assets held-for-trading
Investment in quoted shares 265,611 - - 265,611
Financial assets designated at fair value
through profit and loss
Deposits with financial institutions 3,178,228 - = 3,178,228
Commercial paper - 103,425 - 103,425
Bank and cash balances - 222 541 - 222 541
3,178,228 325,966 - 3,504,154
Available-for-sale financial assets
Investment in government securities 834 094 - - 834,024
Total financial assets 4,277,933 325,966 - 4,603,819
Financial liabilities:
Deposit administration contracts - 16,990,526 - 16,990,52%
Total feir
Company Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 valse
As at 31 December 2014 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'04)
Financial assets:
Financial assets held-for-trading
Investment in quoted shares 262 406 - - 262 4(6
Financial assets designated at fair value
through profit and loss
Deposits with financial institutions 1.650,026 . - 1,650,0%
Commercial paper - 103,734 - 103,72
Bank and cash balances - 87,191 - B87.1¢
1,650,026 190,925 = 1,840,951
Available-for-sale financial assets
Investment in government securities 851,492 - - 851,45
Total financial assets 2,763,924 190,925 - 2,954 84
Financial liabilities:
Deposit administration contracts - 13,963,555 - 13,963,55
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34. Actuarial valuation

In accordance with section 57 of the Insurance Act. 1984 as amended by the Insurance (Amendment) Act, 1994, an
actuarial valuation of the life fund was camfed cut by Saket Singhal actuaries and financial consultants, into the
financial condition in respect of the long-term insurance business of the company and revealed an actuarial surplus of
KShs 2,886.63 million before setling aside reserves and before declaration of interest and bonuses to policyholders.
The value of the life fund at 31 December 2015 was KShs 22,005.57 million. Transfers before tax were made out of
the statutory reserve in the year amounting to KShs €0 million {2014: KShs 60 million) based on the recommendatian

of the Actuary.

35. Weighted average effective fixed interest rates
The following table summarises the weighted average effective interest rates at the year end on the principal interest-

bearing investments:

2015 2014

% %

Mortgage loans 8.00 B.00
Policy loans 15.00 15.00
Government securities 12.72 12.55
Deposits with financial institutions 12.51 11.56

Deposits with financial institutions regarded as cash and cash equivalents have an average maturity of 3 months
(2014: 3 months)

36. Reinsurers’ share of insurance liabilities 2015 2014
KShs’000 KShs'000
Short term business
Group
Reinsurers' share of:
- unearned premiums (Mcte 28) 599,908 597,372
- notified claims outstanding 3,699,395 5,377,795
- ¢laims incurred but not reported 318,454 384,885
4,017,859 5,762,780
At end of year 4,617,767 6,360,152
Company
Reinsurers’ share of;
- unearned premiums (Note 28) 372,942 349,67«
- netified claims outstanding 3,289,336 4 850,35¢
- claims incurred but not reported 236,452 279 46¢
3,525,788 5,129,857
At end of year 3,898,730 5,479,531

Amounts due from reinsurers in respect of claims already paid by the company on contracts that are reinsured
are included in receivables arising out of reinsurance arrangements in the statement of financial position.
Detailed movements in the above reinsurance assets are shown below and in Notes 23 and 28.

Group Company
2015 2014 2015 2014
KShs"000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000
At start of year 6,360,152 7,882,047 5,479,631 6,853,509
Increase f{decrease) during the period {gross)
(1,742,385)  (1,621,885) (1,580,801) (1,383,978)
At 31 December 4,617,767 6,360,152 3,898,730 5,479,531

Reinsurers' share of insurance liabilities is classified as a current asset.
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aT.

Contingent liabilities

Legal Proceedings and Regulations

The Group operates in the insurance industry and is subject to legal proceedings in the nomal course of busingss.
While it is not practicable to forecast or determine the final results of all pending or threatened legal proceedings,
management does not believe that such proceedings (including litigations) will have a material effect on its results and
financial position. The Group is also subject to insurance solvency regulations in all the territories where it operates
and has complied with all these solvency regulations. There are no contingencies associated with the Group's
compliance or lack of compliance with such regulations,

Contingent liabilities for custom bonds, at the year-end were KShs 2.552 billion {2014: KShs 1.106 billion).

Material Damage Claim

The company was in discussion with its reinsurers on a matter relating to a claim by one of its clients, relating to
material damage as at 31 December 2012. The lead reinsurer on the matter, had contended that the company cver
ceded on the surplus treaty in respect of material damage portion of the policy. The company subsequently contested
this assertion by the reinsurer, and reinsurers paid off their portion of the liability.

The company then settled the claim and issued a discharge voucher which was not signed and returned as expected
from the claimant alleging dissatisfaction of the quantum of the settlement. The matter is still unresclved.

From management assessment, even if the insured goes to court, any additional liability will be borne by the
reinsurers and the company will only suffer to the extent of the retention limit.

38, Commitments

a) Capital commitments

b

There was no capital expenditure contracted for at the reporting date but not recognised in the financial statements
(2014: KShs Nil).

Operating lease commitments — as a lessee

The group has entered into commercial property leases in respect of its investment property portfolio. Leases includ: a
clause to enable upward revision of the rental charge on an annual basis according to prevailing market conditions.
The future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating lease are as follows:

Payahble
2015 2114
Payable (as a lessee) KShs'000 KShs'i0D
Mot later than 1 year 11,990 11,420
Later than 1 year and not later than & years 14,300 13,87
At end of year 26,290 25,77
Receivable
2015 2014
Receivable (as a lessor) KShs'000 KShs'O0
Mot later than 1 year 85,127 65,684
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 86,647 69,51
At end of year 172,774 135,55
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39,

Related party transactions

There are several companies which are related to the company through common shareholdings or common
directorship. General Insurance Corporafion, Mew India Assurance Company Limited and Life Insurance

Corporation of India are

major shareholders of Kenindia Assurance Company Limited. United Insurance Company Limited, National
Insurance Company Limited, Oriental Insurance Company Limited and Kaluworks Kenya Limited are related to
Kenindia Assurance Company Limited through common directorship.

Kenindia Asset Management Company Limited and Kenya Pravack Limited are wholly owned subsidiaries of
Kenindia Assurance Company Limited. Tanzindia Assurance Company Limited is partially owned {65%) by

Kenindia Assurance Company Limited.

In the normal course of business, insurance policies are sold to related parties at terms and conditions similar to

those offered to major clients.

The following transactions were carried out with related parties

Long term Short term Long term  Short term
assurance  insurance 2015 assurance  insurance 14

business business Total business business Total
Transactions with related parties KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs’000 KShs'000 KShsD00
Gross earned premium
General insurance corporation - 337,156 337,156 - 110,870 110370
Other related parties - 219,602 219,602 - 206,759 208,759
Met claims incurred
General insurance corporation - 154,752 154,752 - 21,829 21,129
Other related parties - 77187 77,187 - 78,954 78,154

Long term Short term Long term Short term

assurance insurance 2015 assurance insurance 2004
Qutstanding balances with related business business Total business  business Toal
parties K5hs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'0i0
Premiums receivable from related
parties
General Insurance Corporation - 44,001 44 001 - 97,614 9764
Life Insurance Corporation of India [3,049) - 13,049) (3,049) - (3,0
New India Assurance Company
Limited - {553,274) (553,274) - [638,254)  (B38,25)
United Insurance Company Limited - - - - 619 69
Naticnal Insurance Company Limited - 2181 2,181 - 708 7
Oriental Insurance Company Limited - 1,476 1.476 - 335 35
Tanzindia Assurance Company Limited - 34,239 34,239 - 852 a2
East Africa Re Limited {4,511) 11,723 7,212 (3.220) 70,187 66,97

There were no provisions made or amounts written off on related party balances during the year {2014; KShs Mil).
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39. Related party transactions {continued)

Group Company

2015 2014 2015 2014
KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000

(iii} Bank deposits

Credit Bank Deposits = = " 2

{iv) Directors’ emoluments

Directors' fees (Note 8) 2,025 2,025 2025 2,025
Other expenses 9.766 14,307 9,604 11,763
As executives 23,097 28,834 21870 17,3808

34,888 45,166 33,299 3ATT

Directors' loans - - - -

(v} Key management personnel

Salaries and benefits 121,298 125,088 85,103 99 115
Social security benefit costs 28 29 28 29
Retirement benefit costs 8,063 8,200 4 435 5,603

129,389 133,317 89,566 104,747

Key management persennel relate to top and middle level management {general managers and assistant general
managers).

40. Insurance risk

The company's activities expose it to insurance risk. The company's overall risk management programme focuses
on the identification and management of risks and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on its financial
performance, by use of underwriting guidelines and capacity limits, reinsurance planning, managing insurance risk
through appropriate pricing, credit policy governing the acceptance of clients, and defined critera for the approval
of intermediaries and reinsurers.

This section summarises the way the company manages key insurance risks:

The principal risk the Group faces under insurance contracts is that the actual claims and benefit payments or the
timing thereof, differ from expectations. This is influenced by the frequency of claims, severity of claims, actual
benefits paid and subsequent development of long-term claims. Therefore, the objective of the Group is to ensure
that sufficient reserves are available to cover these liabilities.

The risk exposure is mitigated by diversification across a large portfolio of insurance contracts. The variability of
risks is also improved by careful selection and implementation of underwriting strategy guidelines, as well as the
use of reinsurance arrangements,

The Group purchases reinsurance as part of its risks mitigation programme. Reinsurance ceded is placed on both
a proportional and non-proportional basis. The majority of proportional reinsurance is quota—share reinsurance
which is taken out to reduce the overall exposure of the Group to certain classes of business. Nen—proportional
reinsurance is primarily excess—of-loss reinsurance designed to mitigate the group's net exposure to catastrophe
losses. Retention limits for the excess—of-loss reinsurance vary by product line.

Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are estimated in @ manner consistent with the ocutstanding claims provision
and are in accordance with the reinsurance centracts. Although the Group has reinsurance arrangements, it is not
relieved of its direct obligations to its policyholders and thus a credit exposure exisis with respect to ceded
insurance, to the extent that any reinsurer is unable to meet its obligations assumed under such reinsurance
agreements.

The Group's placement of reinsurance is diversified such that it is neither dependent cn a single reinsurer nor are
the operations of the Group substantially dependent upon any single reinsurance contract. There is no single
counterparty exposure that exceeds 5% of total reinsurance assets at the reporting date,
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40. Insurance risk {continued)

The risk under any one insurance cantract is the possibility that the insured event occurs and the uncertainty of the
amount of the resulting claim. By the wery nature of an insurance contract, this risk is random and therefore
unpredictable.

For a portfolio of insurance contracts where the theory of probability is applied to pricing and provisioning, the principal
risk that the company faces under its insurance contracts Is that the actual claims and benefit paymenis exceed the
carrying amount of the insurance liabilities. This could occur because the frequency or seventy of claims and benefits
are greater than estimated. Insurance events are random and the actual number and amount of claims and benefits will
vary from year to year from the level established using statistical techniques.

Experience shows that the larger the portfolio of similar insurance contracts, the smaller the relative variability about the
expected outcome will be. In addition, a more diversified portfolio is less likely to be affected across the board by a
change in any subset of the portfelio. The company has developed its insurance underwriting strategy to diversify the
type of insurance risks accepted and within each of these categories to achieve a sufficiently large population of risks to
reduce the variability of the expected outcome,

Factors that aggravate insurance risk include lack of risk diversification in terms of type and amount of risk, geographical
location and type of industry covered.

{a) Life assurance contracts

Life assurance contracts offered by the Group include whale life and term assurance. Whole life and term assurance arg
conventional regular premium products when lump sum benefits are payable on death or permanent disability. Few
contracts have a surrender value.

The main risks that the Group is exposed to are as follows:
Mortality risk — risk of loss arising due to policyholder death experience being different than expected,
Morbidity risk — risk of loss arising due to policyhelder health experience being different than expected.

Longevity risk — risk of loss arising due to the annuitant living longer than expected.

Investment return risk - risk of loss arising from actual returns being different than expected.

Expense risk — risk of loss arising from expense experience being different than expected.

Policyholder decision risk — risk of loss arising due to pelicyholder experiences {lapses and surrenders) being different
than expected.

These risks do not vary significantly in relation to the type of risk insured or by industry

The Group's underwriting strategy is designed to ensure that risks are well diversified in terms of type of risk and level
of insured benefits, This is largely achieved through the use of medical screening in order to ensure that pricing takes
account of current health conditions and family medical history, regular review of actual claims experience and product
pricing, as well as detailed claims handling procedures. Underwriting limits are in place to enforce appropriate risk
selection criteria. For example, the Group has the right not to renew individual policies, it can impose deductibles and it
has the right to reject the payment of fraudulent claims. Insurance contracts also entitie the Group to pursue third parties
for payment of some or all costs, The Group further enforces a policy of actively managing and promptly pursuing
claims, in order to reduce its exposure to unpredictable future developments that can negatively impact the Group.

For contracts when death or disability is the insured risk, the significant factors that could increase the overall frequency
of claims are epidemics, widespread changes in lifestyle and natural disasters, resulting in earlier or more claims than
expected. Group wide reinsurance limits on any single life insured and on all high risk individuals insured are in place.

For annuity contracts, the most significant factor is continued improvement in medical science and social conditions that
would increase longevity. The Group reinsures its annuity contracts on a quota share basis to mitigate: its risk,

KENINDIA ASSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

88



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

40. Insurance risk {continued)
(@) Life assurance contracis (continued)

The following table shows the concentration of life insurance contract liabilities by type of contract;

Life assurance contract lizbilities 2015 2014
KShs'000 KShs'000
Whale life 395 277 52,753
Term assurances 125 -
Endowments 3,185,087 4,185,789
Annuities 8,881 9,302
3,589,370 4,247 844

Key assumptions and sensitivities

Refer to note 27 for key assumptions and sensitivities.
{b) Non-life insurance contracts (which comprise of general insurance and healthcare)

The Group principally issues the following types of general insurance contracts: motor, househeld, commercial and
business interruption. Healthcare contracts provide medical expense coverage to policyholders and are not guaranteed
renewable. Risks under non-life insurance policies usually cover twehve months duration.

For general insurance conftracts, the most significant risks arise from climate changes, natural disasters and terrorst
activities. For longer tail claims that take some years to settle, there is also inflation risk. For healthcare contracts tie
most significant risks arise from lifestyle changes, epidemics and medical science and technology imprevements.

These risks do not vary significantly in relation to the location of the risk insured by the Group, type of risk insured and
by industry.

The above risk exposure is mitigated by diversification across a large portfolio of insurance contracts and geographical
areas. The variability of risks is improved by careful selection and implementation of underwriting strategies, which ae
designed to ensure that risks are diversified in terms of type of risk and level of insured benefits, This is largey
achieved through diversification across industry sectors. Furthermore, strict claim review policies to assess all new ard
on-going claims, regular detailed review of claims handling procedures and frequent investigation of possible fraudulent
claims are all policies and procedures put in place to reduce the risk exposure of the Group. The Group further enforces
a policy of actively managing and promptly pursuing claims, in order to reduce its exposure to unpredictable futui
developments that can negatively impact the business. Infiation risk is mitigated by taking expected inflation ino
account when estimating insurance contract liabilities.

The Group has also limited its exposure by imposing maximum claim amounts on certain contracts as well as the use :f
reinsurance arrangements in order to limit exposure to catastrophic events (e.g. flood damage).

The purpose of these underwriling and reinsurance strategies is to limit exposure to catastrophes based on the Groups
risk appetite as decided by management. The overall aim is currently to restrict the impact of a single catastrophic eve:t
to approximately 50% of shareholders’ equity on a gross basis and 10% on a net basis. In the event of sucha
catastrophe, counterparty exposure to a single reinsurer is estimated not to exceed 2% of shareholders’ equity. The
Board may decide to increase or decrease the maximum tolerances based on market conditions and other factors.

Key assumptions

The principal assumption underlying the liability estimates is that the Group's future claims development will follow 2
similar pattern to past claims development experience. This includes assumptions in respect of average claim cost;,
claim handling costs, claim inflation factors and claim numbers for each accident year. Additional qualitative judgemens
are used to assess the extent to which past trends may not apply in the future, for example: ence—off ocourrence,
changes in market factors such as public attitude to claiming, economic conditions, as well as internal factors such &
portfolio mix, policy conditions and claims handling procedures,

Judgement is further used to assess the extent to which external factors such as judicial decisions and governmeit
legislation affect the esfimates. Other key circumstances affecting the reliability of assumptions include variation i
interest rates, delays in settlement and changes in foreign currency rates.
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40. Insurance risk {continued)

(b} Mon-fife insurance contracts {which comprise of general insurance and healthcare) (continued)

Sensitivities

The non-life insurance claim liabiliies are sensitive to the key assumptions that follow, It has not been possible to
quantify the sensitivity of certain assurmptions such as legislative changes or uncertainty in the estimation process

The following analysis is performed for reasonably possible movements in key assumptions with all other assumptions
held constant, showing the impact on gross and net liabilities, profit before tax and equity. The correlation of
assumptions will have a significant effect in determining the ulimate claims liabilities, but to demonstrate the impact due
to changes in assumptions, assumptions had to be changed on an individual basis. |t should be noted that movements

in these assumptions are non-linear.

The assumptions are as follows:

Adjustments to claims incurred in prior liabilities

accident years due to in assumption

Average claim cost inclusive of average cost

to process the claim setlement
Average number of claims

Average claims settiement period (days)

Insurance liabilities {Group)

31 December 2015

Average claim cost

Average number of claims
Average claims settlement period
31 December 2014

Average claim cost

Average number of claims

Average claims settlement period

2015 2014
Net MNet
insurance insurance
Re- liabilities Re-  liabilities
insurance/ {gross insurance/ (gross
reinsurers insurance reinsurers insurance
Gross share of liabilities Gross share of  lizhillities
insurance insurance less insurance insurance fess
liabilities insurance liabilities liabilities insurance
KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs000 KShs’000 Kths'000
199 (118) 81 199 (118) 81
25 (25) 25 25 (25) 25
60 60 60 60 &0 B0
Impacton Impacton Impacton
gross net profit or
Change in insurance insurance loss before Impact
assumptions liabilities liabilities tax on equity
+10% 585,886 184,100 (85.672)  (82,369)
-10%  {585,886) 184,100 85,672 82,369
Reduce from 60
days to 50 days {976,476}  (306,833) 142,786 137,282
+10% 681,967 130,580 (16,479  {11.817)
-10%  (681,967)  (130,580) 16,479 11,817
Reduce from 60
days to S0 days (1,136,612)  (217,633) 27,464 19.685
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40. Insurance risk {continued)

(b} Mon-fife nsurance contracts (which comprise of general insurance and healthcare) (continued)

Sensitivities (continued)

Reinsurance assets (Group)

91

Impact on Impacton Impacton
aross net profit or
Change in insurance insurance loss Impact
31 December 2015 assumptions liabilities  liabilities before tax on equity
Average claim cost +10% - (401,786) 85,672 82,369
Average number of claims -10% - 401,766 {85,672)  (B2,369)
Reduce from 60
Average claims settlement pericd days to 50 days - (669,643) 142,786 137.282
31 December 2014
Average claim cost +10% - [551,388) 16,479 11,817
Averaga number of claims -10% - 551,388 (16,479) (11,817}
Reduce from &0
Average claims settlement period days to 50 days - (918,979) 27 464 19,695
Insurance liabilities (Company)
31 December 2015
Average claim cost +10% 515,972 163,393 (80,468)  (79,091)
Average number of claims -10%  (515,972) 163,393 80 468 79,091
Reduce from 60
Average claims settlement period days to 50 days  (B59,954)  (272,322) 134,113 131,818
31 December 2014
Average claim cost +10% 603,289 115,194 (14,038) {8,722)
Average number of claims -10% (603,288}  (115,194) 14,036 9722
Reduce from 60
Average claims settlement period days to 50 days (1,005,481 {191,989) 23,394 16,203
Reinsurance assets (Company)
3 December 2015
Average claim cost +10% - (352,579) 80,468 79,081
Average number of claims -10% - 352,579 (B0,468)  (79.081)
Reduce from 60
Average claims settlement period days to 50 days - (587 631) {134,113} 131,801
31 December 2014
Average claim cost +10% - (488,095) 14,036 Q722
Average number of claims -10% - 488,095 [14,036) (9,722)
Reduce from 80
Average claims settlement pericd days to 50 days - (813,492) 23,394 16,203



KENINDIA ASSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

40. Insurance risk (continued)
(b} Non-life insurance contracts (which comprise of general insurance and heaithcare) (continued)

Concentrations

The following table shows the concentration of nen-life insurance contract liabilities by type of contract:

Non-life insurance contract liabilities

Group Company

2015 2014 2015 2014

KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000

Engineering 1,248,740 1,202,102 1,198 266 1,174,325
Fire Domestic 19,842 15,285 19,942 19,285
Fire Industrial 2,488,932 4,306,971 2,152,925 3,803,387
Liability 65,128 72,249 65,128 72,249
Marine 217,732 188,659 205,784 176,796
Motor Private 354,212 299,256 194,809 190,923
Motor Commercial 378,253 336,697 378,253 336,697
Personal Accident 80,477 o7, 6687 80,477 97 687
Theft 185,265 206,659 185,265 206,659
Workmen Compensation 657,698 676,062 B57,698 676,062
Medical 19,088 22,225 18,088 21,979
Aviation 317 - - -
Miscellaneous 145,074 141,741 2,086 6,762
At 31 December 5,858,858 7,569,573 5,159,721 6,782,791

41.Financial risk management objectives and policies
Financial risk

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including credit risk, liquidity risk, foreign currency
exchange risks, interest rate risks, market price risks and the effect of changes in property values risk.

The Group is exposed to financial risk through its financial assets, financial liabilities, reinsurance assets and
insurance liabilities. In particular the key financial risk is that the proceeds from its financial assets are not sufficient
to fund the obligations arising from its insurance contracts. The most important components of this financial risk are
interest rate risk, price risk, currency risk, liquidity risk and credit risk,

These risks arise from open positions in interest rate, currency and equity products, all of which are exposed to
general and specific market movements. The risks that the Group primarily faces due to the nature of its
investrments and liabilities are interest rate risk and price risk,

This section summarises the way the Group manages key risks:

{iIMarket risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risks: foreign exchange rates {currency risk), market
interest rates (interest rate risk) and market prices (price risk).
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#1.Financial risk management objectives and policies
(i} Market risk {continued)

(a) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of the
changes in market interest rates. The group has a large portion of its investments in interest (fixed) earning deposits
and government securities and variable interest investments such as bank balances. Interest rate risk arises primarily
from the group’s investments in fixed and variable income securities, which are exposed to fluctuations in interest rates.
Floating rate instruments expose the Group to cash fiow interest risk, whereas fixed interest rate instruments expose
the Group to fair value interest risk. The Group's interest risk policy requires it to manage interest rate risk by
maintaining an appropriate mix of fixed and variable interest rate instruments.

The sensitivity analysis on interest rate risk over insurance participating and assets backing life shareholders is shown
in Note 27.

Appraisal of investment portfolio is done on a regular basis and the investrment spread reviewed depending on the
existing interest rates. The group has also placed significant balances in fixed deposits. However, the Group has no
loans and borrowings and therefore is not exposed to interest rate risk as far as loans and barrowings are concemed.

The impact of Group's liabilities to interest rates is shown in Mote 27 (under 'sensitivity analysis on actuarial
assumptions'). Short term non-life insurance liabilities are not impacted by interest rate risk since discounting of future
cash flows of claims is not carried out. Mon-life claims are stated on actual basis.

The quantitative exposure to interest rate risk as required by IFRS 7 is shown below:

Changes in interest rates (for assets with fixed and variable interest rates) will have the following impact in the stateren
of profit or loss.

Group Company
% change in

base 2015 2014 2015 2014
Financial assets KShs'000 KShs'0:00 KShs’000 KShs'000
Variable interest rates
Bank balances +-110.00% +(-130,223 +-114, 410 +{-122,252 +(-18,713
Fixed interest rates
Government securities
[Held to maturity) +(-110.00% +(-]1.987 847 +(-11.633,673 +{-}1,982,802 +-]1.633,673
Depesits with financial
institutions +{-110.00% +(-1339.472 +{-1183.787 +(-1317 823 +(-1165.003
Mortgage loans +(-110.00% +{-1481 +-1481 +-1481 +{-148"
Policy loans +(-110.00% +{-19,101 +{-18,041 +H-19.101 +(-)8.04"

Changes in interest rates (for assets with fixed interest rates) will have the following impact in the statement of profi
or loss.

Group Company
% change in 2015 2014 2015 2014
base KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs’000 KShs'00C

Government securities
(Available for sale) #(-110.00% +(-184 BBT +(-191,638 +-183.409 +(-185,148
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41, Financial risk management objectives and policies

(i) Market risk (continued)

a) Interest rate risk {continued)

The group has no significant concentration of interest rate risk other than what is currently disclosed. The method used for
deriving sensitivity information and significant variables did not change from the previous period,

b) Currency rate risk

Currency rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates.

The company predominantly transacts in the local currency (Kenya shillings). The risk associated with transactions i
other currency (US Dollar) is considered nominal. Except for an amount of USD 60,264/18 (KShs 5459,802) equivalent
held as bank balances, all other balances are originally denominated in the local currency. If the US Dollar was t
appreciate against the Kenya Shilling by 5%, with all other factors remaining constant, the post-tax profit would be highe
by KShs 272,990. Abcut 82% of the group's business is generated in Kenya, 18% from the subsidiary (Tanzindi:
Assurance Company Limited) whose transactions are originally denominated in Tanzania Shillings (TShs). The foreigr
currency translation of the subsidiary was KShs 17,926,000 (2014 KShs 15,254,000). The group has no significan

concentration of currency risk.

Price risk

[+
) Price risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in

market prices (other than arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are carried by factors
specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the
market.

The capital is invested in equities and interest-bearing instruments {govermment securities) that are valued at fair value
and are therefore susceptible to market fluctuations. Management assesses the trend in the market prices and the
interest rates and ensures a smoothening effect by balancing the portfelios, without contravening investment mandates,
in order to ensure investment income growth as well as stability in eguities. The Group has neo significant concentration of
price risk.

At 31 December 2015, if the prices at the Nairobi Stock Exchange had appreciated by 5% with all other variables held
constant, the profit for the year would have increased by KShs 9,680,423 (2014: KShs 4,231,774) for long-term business
and KShs 3,600,130 (2014: KShs 4,226,428) for short-term business respectively. The method used for deriving
sensitivity information and significant variables did not change from the previous period.

Changes in prices of Government Securities (Available-for-sale investments) for the Group and Company will have te
following impact in statement of profit or loss and equity.

% change in 2015 2014
base KShs'000 KShs"00¢
Group-Short term business
Government securities {Available-for-sale) +{-15% +(-}42 344 +(-145,81¢
Company-Short term business
Government securities (Available-for-sale) +(-)5% +-141,705 +{-)42 57¢

{ii) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss to the other party by failing fo discharge
an obligation,
The following policies and procedures are in place to mitigate the group’s exposure to credit risk.
* The group trades only with recognised, creditworthy third parties. It is the group's policy that all customers who wisn
to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures taking into account its financial position, past
experignce and other factors. Individual risk limits are set based on internal ratings in accordance with limits

set by the management. In additicn, receivable balances are monitored on an on going basis with the result that the
group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant. There are no significant concentrations of credit risk within the goup.

94



KENINDIA ASSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

41 Financial risk management objectives and policies {continued)
(ii)Credit risk (continued)

»  Credit risk in respect to re-insurance is managed by placing the group's reinsurance anly with companies that
have high international or similar ratings.

The amount that best represents the Group’s and the company's maximum exposure to credit risk at
31 December is made up as follows:

Group Company

Note 2015 2014 2015 2014
KShs 000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000

Financial instruments

Held-to-maturity financial assets 25 19,879,466 16,336,729 19,828,017 16,336,729
Loans receivable 20 96,656 86,548 96,656 86,548
Investment in the Kenya Motor Insurance Pool 24 86,201 86,857 86,201 86,857
Available-for-sale financial assets

(Government securities) 25 846,865 916,376 834,004 851,492
Financial assets at fair value through profit or

loss 18 276,380 272,101 265,611 62,406
Deposits with financial institutions 33 3,394,722 1,837,865 3,178,228 1,650,026
Commercial paper 33 103,425 103,734 103,425 103,734
Receivables arising out of reinsurance

arrangements 21 1,371,511 1,148,153 969,547 12,507
Reinsurers' share of insurance liabilities 38 4,617,767 6,360,162 3,898.730 5,479,531
Receivables arising out of direct insurance

arrangemenis 22 744,045 718,074 491,145 435,363
Bank and cash balances 32 apz 227 144 102 222 541 37,191
Other receivables 24 1,315,033 439,773 1,311,054 415,438
Total credit risk exposure 33,034,299 28,451,464 31,285,249 26,717,822

Information regarding the credit quality of “not past due' and 'not impaired’ monetary assets is disclosed in Mote 22 and
Mote 41.

Age analysis of Group’s financial assets neither past due nor impaired and past due but not impaired:-

31 December 2015

Total past
Mot past due but
due and not 31 to 60 61 to 90 Over 90 not
<30days impaired days days days impaired Totil

KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs’000 KShs'000 KShs'000 kshs'o0o KShs'0m

Loans

receivable 1,273 1,273 1,308 826 93,249 95,383 96,65¢
Reinsurance

assets 482,382 482,382 22,264 14,843 852,022 889,129 1,371,51|
Insurance

receivables 67,889 67,889 196,062 163,822 451,950 676,156 744,04
Total 551,544 551,544 219,634 179,591 1.397.221 4 56o 668 2,212,21;
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41 Financial risk management objectives and policies {continued)

Age analysis of Group’s financial assets neither past due nor impaired and past due but not impaired:-

31 December 2014

Total past
Not past due but
due and not 31 to 60 61 to 90 Qver 90 not
<30days impaired days days days impaired Total
KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs'0po HKShs'000  kshs'ooo KShs’000
Loans
receivable 1,273 1,273 1,308 826 83,141 85,275 86,548
Reinsurance
assets 482,382 482,382 22,264 14,843 629,664 666,771 1,149,153
Insurance
receivables 190,564 190,564 60,431 71,086 395993 527,510 718,074
Total 674,219 674,219 84,003 86,755 1,108,798 1 279 556 1,953,775

Age analysis of Company’s financial assets neither past due nor impaired and past due but not impaired:-

31 December 2015

Neither Total past
past due due but
nor 31 to 60 61 to 90 Over 90 not
<30days impaired days days days impaired Total
KShs'000 KShs'000  KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs’000 Kshs'o00  KSis'QO0
Loans receivable 1,273 1,273 1,308 826 93,249 95,383 16,656
Reinsurance assets 266,888 266,888 8,952 5,643 689,350 702,659 99,547
Insurance
receivables (36,673) {36,673 91,500 59,360 376,958 527,818 441,145
Total 231,488 231,488 101,760 65,829 1,169,557 1,325,860  1,5i7,348
31 December 2014
Loans receivable 1,273 1,273 1,308 826 83,141 85,275 65,548
Reinsurance assets 266,888 266,888 8,952 5643 631,024 645,619 942 507
Insurance receivables 190,564 190,564 60,431 71,086 173,282 304,799 45,363
Total 458,725 458,725 70,691 77,555 B87,447 1,035,693 144418

96



KENINDIA ASSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

41 Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

(i)

Impaired financial assets

At 31 December 2015, the Group and Company had impaired insurance assets of KShs 26,796,000 and KShs
24,018,000 respectively {2014; Group and Company KShs 50,282,000 and KShs 48,841,000 respectively). For
assets to be classified as ‘past-due and impaired', contractual payments must be in arrears for more than 90 days.

Collateral is held for loans receivables, For reinsurance assets and insurance receivables, no collateral is held as
security for any past due or impaired assets.

The Group and Company records impairment allowances for loans and receivables in a separate impairment
allowance account. A reconciliation of the allowancs for impairment losses for loans and receivables is as shown in
note 22,

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty, in meeting obligations associated with its financial
lfabilities. In respect of catastrophic events there is also a liquidity risk associated with the timing ditferences
between gross cash out flows and expected reinsurance recoveries. Investment policies are in place, which help
manage liquidity, and seek to maximise return within an acceptable level of interest rate risk.

The following policies and procedures are in place to mitigate the Group’s exposure to liquidity risk: A Group liquidity
risk policy which sets out the assessment and determination of what constitutes liquidity risk for the Group.
Compliance with the policy is monitored and exposures and breaches are reported to the Group risk committee. The
policy is regularly reviewed and for changes in the risk environment. Contingency funding plans are in place, which
specify minimum proportions of funds to meet emergency calls as well as specifying events that would trigger such
plans.

The Group is exposed to daily calls on its available cash for claims settlement and other administration BXpEensas,
The Group does maintain cash resources to meet all these needs and experience shows that a minimum level of
reinvestment of maturing funds can be predicted with a high level of stahility.

* The Group holds a large portion of its assets in short term deposits and investments that are easily convertible
to cash.
* The cash flow pasition of the Group is reviewed on a weekly basis.

Maturity profiles

The table that follows summarises the maturity profile of the financial assets and financial liabilities of the Group
based on remaining undiscounted contractual obligations, including interest payable and receivable, Liabilities and
payables represent non-discounted cash flows.

(i) Credit risk {continued)

For insurance contracts liabilities in short term business and reinsurance assets, maturity profiles are shown
on undiscounted basis. Unearned premiums and the reinsurers' share of unearned premiums have been
included in the analysis although they are not contractual chligations, since insurance items are included n
IFRS 7 disclosures as if the insurance items were financial instruments. Re payments which are subject 1
notice are treated as if notice were to be given immediately,

The Group maintains a pertfalio of highly marketable and diverse assets that can be easily liquidated in the

event of an unforeseen interruption of cash flow. Reinsurance assets have been presented on the same basis
as insurance liabilities. Loans and receivables include contractual interest receivable (if any).
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KENINDIA ASSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {(continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

41,

42

Financial risk management cbjectives and policies {continued)
Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss arising from system failure, human error, fraud or external events.

The Group mitigates this risk through its culture and values, a comprehensive system of internal controls and other
measures such as back-up facilities, contingency planning and insurance. The initiation of transactions and their
administration is conducted on the basis of the segregation of duties, designed to ensure the comectness, completeness
and validity of all transactions.

Compliance risk

Laws and regulations:

The Group considers compliance with applicable laws, industry regulations and codes an integral part of doing business.
The Group’s management facilitates the compliance through the analysis of statutory and regulatory requirements, and
monitoring the implementation and execution thereof.

Compliance with Investment mandates:
Management reviews compliance with Investment mandates on a monthly basis. When a possible breach is detected,
management ensure that immediate remedial action is taken.

Property risk
The capital portfolio has limited exposure fo investment properties and accordingly the related property risk.
Diversification in property type, geographical location and tenant exposure are all used to reduce the risk exposure.

Prior year adjustment

The prior year adjustment in 2014 related to deferred income tax liability on the whole actuarial surplus carried forward in
life business on adoption of a guideline issued during the year in relation to application of 1AS 12.

The financial statements for the financial years ended 31 December 2013 have been restated to comply with the 1AS

provisions. For purposes of comparative movements, 2012 position have also been shown in the note. The efect of the
restatement on those financial statements is summarised below:
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KENINDIA ASSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

42 Prior year adjustment (continued)
Year ended 31 December 2013
Group Company
As As previously
previously As restated reported
reported At 31 At 31 As restated
At December December December At 31 December
2013 Adjustment 2013 20123 Adjustment 2013
KShs'000 KShs’000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs’000 KShs'000
Liabilities
Deferred tax liability - 98,304 98,304 - 98,304 98,304
Capital and
reserves
Retained eamings 1,267,950 (98,304) 1,169 646 1,202,230 (98,304) 1,103,926
Net movement - - - - - -
Results for the year
Short-term insurance business
Group 2013 Company 2013
Kshs'000 Kshs'000
Profit for the year as previously reported 493,735 473817
Prior period adjustments (72,747) (72, 747)
Profit for the year as restated 420,988 402.870
43. Capital management

Externally imposed capital requirements are set and regulated by the Insurance Regulatory Authority (IRA). These
requirements are put in place to ensure solvency margins are maintained in the insurance industry. Further
objectives are set by the group to maintain a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to suprort its
business objectives and maximise shareholders value.

Further, the company currently has a paid up capital of KShs 161,388,000 million in the long term business which
exceeds the minimum (KShs 150 million) requirement as per the Insurance Act. In the short term business, the
company’s paid up capital should not be less than 10% of the total gross premium written in the shor term
business during the year. The paid up capital is KShs 400,000,000 while 10% of gross premium written is K. Shs
286,405,081 (2014: KShs 264,585,2586),

The company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern r ord:
to provide returns for shareholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. n ord:
to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to sharelolder
issue new capital or sell assets to reduce debt.
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KENINDIA ASSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

44, Company solvency margins
2015 2014
KShs'000 KShs'000
Short term insurance business
Admitted assets 8,120,015 5,147 165
Net premium for 2015/2014 1,733,646 1,725,194
15% of net premium 260,047 258,779
Admitted liabilities 6427948 4,249,730
6,687,995 4,508,509
Solvency margin 1,432,020 638,656
Long term assurance business
Admitted assets 23,617,687 18,950,000
5% of admiited liabilities 1,002,277 865,850
Admitted liabilities 21,845 539 17,317,000
22,837,816 18,182,850
Solvency margin 679,871 767,150

General business solvency has been disclosed on net basis,
Life solvency requirement has been calculated as 5% of admitted liabilities and declared interest has been
included as part of the admitted liabilities as per regulatory requirement.
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KENINDIA ASSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

45, Incorporation and registered office
The company is incorporated in Kenya under the Companies Act. The address of the registered office is given on
page 1.

45, Currency

These financial statements are presented in Kenya Shillings (KShs) and are rounded to the nearest KShs 1,000.
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KENINDIA ASSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

COMPANY LONG TERM ASSURANCE BUSINESS REVENUE ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

Gross premium income
Premiums ceded to reinsurers
Contributions received

Net premium income

Investment income
Other income

Claims incurred

Surrenders and annuity incurred

Net claims and policyholder benefits expense
Operating expenses

Other expenses

Provision for bad debts

Commissions expense

Premium levy

Contribution to policy holders compensation fund
Total expenses

Results of operating activities
Transfer to statutory reserve
Increase/(decrease) in funds
Funds at the beginning of the year
Funds at the end of the year

Long term funds at the end of the year comprise amounts attributable to:

Policyholders:

-Actuarial liabilities
-Deposit administration fund

-Bonus to policy holders

-Statutory reserves

Ordinary life Group life Retirement Total
business business benefit fund 2015
KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs’000 KShs'000
1,001,162 43,860 - 1,045,022
(3.084) (20,295) - (23,389)

“ - 2,238,915 2,238,915

898,068 23,565 2,238,915 3,260,548
550,256 14,716 2,188,075 2,733,047
(168) - - {168)
550,088 14,716 2,168,075 2,732,879
357 688 5,852 279,759 643,299
45,450 - 988,591 1,034 041
403,138 5,852 1,268,350 1,677.340
183,155 1,962 76,533 261 650
35,708 383 14,921 51012
710 a7 297 1015
109,040 8.247 19,918 137,205
6,618 - - 6,618

888 - - 888
336,117 10,600 111,669 458,386
809,901 21,829 3,026,971 3,857,701
{30,000) (30,000) - (60.0D0)

778,9( {8,171) 3,026,971 3777

4,088,098 94,779 13,963,555 18,14€,632
4,866,999 88,608 16,990,526 21,944,133
3,575,960 13,410 - 3.5883F0
- . 15,006,837 15,006837

527,100 - 1,584,020 2121120
4,103,060 13,410 16,600,857 20,717327
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KENINDIA ASSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

COMPANY LONG TERM ASSURANCE BUSINESS REVENUE ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

Gross premium income
Premiums ceded to reinsurers
Contributions received

Net premium income

Investment income
Other income

Claims incurred
Surrenders and annuity incurred

Net claims and policyholder benefits expense
Operating expenses

Other expenses

Commissions expense

Premium levy

Contribution to policy holders compensation fund

Total expenses

Results of operating activities
Transfer to statutory reserve

Increasef{decrease) in funds

Funds at the beginning of the year

Funds at the end of the year

Long term funds at the end of the year comprise amounts attributable to:

Policyholders:
-Actuarial liabilities

Crdinary life Group life Retirement Total
business business benefit fund 2014
KShs’000 KShs'000 KShs'000 KShs’000

698,544 39,968 - 738,512
{2177 (21,780) - {23,957)

£ = 1,794,285 1,784,285

696,367 18,188 1,794,285 2,508,840
458 492 18,332 1,696,292 2.183,116
4372 - - 4,372
472,864 18,332 1,696,292 2,187,488
323,641 4763 405,569 73,973
18,152 = 1,108,392 1,12i,544
341,793 4,763 1,513,961 1,86,,517
149 278 1,589 62,378 211,255
10,499 112 4 387 14,998
95,546 5,700 15,407 110653
5,018 - - {018

791 - - 791
261,132 7.411 82,172 ISNT15
566,306 24,346 1,894 444 2,48:096

- (60,000) - {60000)

566,306 {35,654) 1,884 444 2,428096
3,521,792 130,433 12,069 111 15721336
4,088,098 94,779 13,963,555 18,14643 2
3,219,380 10,870 12,089,540 15,319720
3,219,380 10,870 12,089,540 15,319r90
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